HISTORY OF MANUSCRIPT PUBLICATION JOURNAL OF FOOD PROCESSING AND PRESERVATION (SCOPUS INDEXED – Q2)

Title:

Optimization of Encapsulated Agents and Stirring Speed on the Physicochemical Characteristics of Vacuum Dried Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin (Myristica fragrans)

Corresponding Author :

Victoria Kristina Ananingsih (kristina@unika.ac.id)

Authors:

Victoria Kristina Ananingsih*, Bernadeta Soedarini, Cynthia Andriani, Bernardine Agatha Adi Konstantia, Birgitta Devina Santoso

Contents

1.	Manuscript Submission Acceptance	1
2.	Resubmission of Manuscript	2
3.	Revision from Reviewer	3
4.	Submission of Revised Manuscript	33
5.	Manuscript Accepted	61
6.	Author Dasboard	62
7.	Paper Proofread	64
8.	Copy Right Confirmation	65
9.	Published Paper	67

1. Manuscript Submission

Reply-To: JFPPWiley@wiley.com



Kristina Ananingsih <kristina@unika.ac.id>

Manuscript ID JFPP-06-22-1489 - Journal of Food Processing and Preservation

JFPP Editorial office <onbehalfof@manuscriptcentral.com>

Mon, Jun 13, 2022 at 2:17 PM

To: kristina@unika.ac.id Cc: kristina@unika.ac.id, bernadeta@unika.ac.id, cynthiaandriani@unika.ac.id, bernardine.agatha99@gmail.com, birgittadevina@gmail.com

13-Jun-2022

Dear Dr. Ananingsih:

Your manuscript entitled "Optimization of Encapsulated Agents and Agitation Speed on the Physicochemical Characteristics of Vacuum Dried Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin (Myristica fragrans)" by Ananingsih, Victoria; Soedarini, Bernadeta; Andriani, Cynthia; Konstantia, Bernadine Adi; Santoso, Birgitta, has been successfully submitted online and is presently being given full consideration for publication in the Journal of Food Processing and Preservation.

Co-authors: Please contact the Editorial Office as soon as possible if you disagree with being listed as a co-author for this manuscript.

CASRAI CRedit Taxonomy: authors' contribution(s) to the submitted manuscript are attributed as below. Submitting Authors may provide Author Contributions at original submission but MUST provide the information at revised submission. At revision submission, all authors should check the contributions carefully as if your manuscript is accepted, this information will be included in the published article:

Your manuscript ID is JFPP-06-22-1489.

Please mention the above manuscript ID in all future correspondence or when calling the office for questions. If there are any changes in your street address or e-mail address, please log in to Manuscript Central at https://mc.manuscriptcentral.com/jfpp and edit your user information as appropriate.

This journal offers a number of license options, information about this is available here: https://authorservices.wiley. com/author-resources/Journal-Authors/licensing/index.html, All co-authors are required to confirm that they have the necessary rights to grant in the submission, including in light of each co-author's funder policies. For example, if you or one of your co-authors received funding from a member of Coalition S, you may need to check which licenses you are able to sign.

You can also view the status of your manuscript at any time by checking your Author Center after logging in to https://mc.manuscriptcentral.com/jfpp.

RESPONSE TIME

Journal of Food Processing and Preservation receives a high volume of submissions annually, which may cause delays in making final decisions. If you have not received information within 12 weeks of submission, you may contact the editorial office at JFPPWiley@wiley.com.

RETURN POLICY

We respect the time and research of our authors above all else. If we are unable to acquire satisfactory or sufficient reviewer feedback within 8 weeks of your submission, our journal policy is to return manuscripts to their authors. This is not a reflection on paper quality but on availability of appropriate reviewers. Due to the volume of submissions we receive, Return Policy decisions will not be rescinded. Any questions or concerns may be addressed to the editorial office at JFPPWiley@wiley.com.

JFPP now offers free format submission for a fast and simple submission process. See our author guidelines at https://ifst.onlinelibrary.wiley.com/hub/journal/17454549/homepage/forauthors.html .

Thank you for submitting your manuscript to the Journal of Food Processing and Preservation.

2. Resubmission of manuscript



Kristina Ananingsih <kristina@unika.ac.id>

Journal of Food Processing and Preservation - Manuscript Central Password Request

Journal of Food Processing and Preservation <onbehalfof@manuscriptcentral.com>
Tue, Jul 19, 2022 at 10:37
AM
Reply-To: onbehalfof@manuscriptcentral.com
To: kristina@unika.ac.id

18-Jul-2022

Dear Dr. Ananingsih:

This e-mail has been generated by the entry of your email address into the 'Password Help' box on your site log in page https://mc.manuscriptcentral.com/jtpp.

Your user id is: Ananingsih-fb1aa2f3-dd2a-42ed-bcc5-cda895567c2e

To set your permanent password please click the link below. Clicking the link will take you directly to the option for setting a new password.

https://mc.manuscriptcentral.com/jfpp?URL_MASK=aac558034e8e488baaf710ebd55fa02c

Please note that the single use link will expire on 22-Jul-2022 3:37:29 AM GMT / 21-Jul-2022 11:37:29 PM EDT. If the single use link has expired, you can generate a single use password by entering your email address into the Password Help function on your site log in page: https://mc.manuscriptcentral.com/jfpp

Sincerely,

Journal of Food Processing and Preservation Editorial Office

3. Revision from reviewer



Kristina Ananingsih <kristina@unika.ac.id>

Journal of Food Processing and Preservation - Decision on Manuscript ID JFPP-06-22-1489

Anet Rezek Jambrak <onbehalfof@manuscriptcentral.com> Reply-To: anet.rezek.jambrak@pbf.hr Sun, Jul 17, 2022 at 7:33 PM

Cc: kristina@unika.ac.id, bernadeta@unika.ac.id, cynthiaandriani@unika.ac.id, bernardine.agatha99@gmail.com, birgittadevina@gmail.com

17-Jul-2022

Dear Dr. Ananingsih:

To: kristina@unika.ac.id

We recognise that the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic may affect your ability to return your revised manuscript to us within the requested timeframe. If this is the case, please let us know.

Manuscript ID JFPP-06-22-1489 entitled "Optimization of Encapsulated Agents and Agitation Speed on the Physicochemical Characteristics of Vacuum Dried Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin (Myristica fragrans)" which you submitted to the Journal of Food Processing and Preservation, has been reviewed. The comments of the reviewer(s) are included at the bottom of this letter.

The reviewer(s) have recommended some revisions to your manuscript. Therefore, I invite you to respond to the reviewer(s)' comments and revise your manuscript.

To revise your manuscript, log into https://mc.manuscriptcentral.com/jfpp and enter your Author Center, where you will find your manuscript title listed under "Manuscripts with Decisions." Under "Actions," click on "Create a Revision." Your manuscript number has been appended to denote a revision.

You will be unable to make your revisions on the originally submitted version of the manuscript. Instead, revise your manuscript using a word processing program and save it on your computer. Please also highlight the changes to your manuscript within the document by using the track changes mode in MS Word or by using bold or colored text. Once the revised manuscript is prepared, you can upload it and submit it through your Author Center.

Unique & Verifiable Author Emails

To ensure that all authors and co-authors have a unique account in Journal of Food Processing and Preservation and that their account has a valid email address, the editors now request that every author account has an institutional email address when the revised manuscript is resubmitted. All authors and co-authors should

- log into their accounts at https://mc.manuscriptcentral.com/jfpp
- access their account details by clicking on the drop-down menu where their name appears in the toolbar
- click on the 'Email/Name' tab.
- input their institutional address in either 'Primary E-Mail Address' or 'Primary Cc E-Mail Address'.

Where authors or co-authors do not have an institutional email address they should include an explanation in the Author Cover letter along with any links to websites which can be used to verify the email address such as a University website, Research organization site, etc.

When submitting your revised manuscript, you will be able to respond to the comments made by the reviewer(s) in the space provided. You can use this space to document any changes you make to the original manuscript. In order to expedite the processing of the revised manuscript, please be as specific as possible in your response to the reviewer(s).

Wiley Editing Services Available to All Authors

Should you be interested, Wiley Editing Services offers expert help with manuscript, language, and format editing, along with other article preparation services. You can learn more about this service option at www.wileyauthors.com/eeo/preparation. You can also check out Wiley's collection of free article preparation resources for general guidance about writing and preparing your manuscript at www.wileyauthors.com/eeo/prepresources.

This journal offers a number of license options, information about this is available here: https://authorservices.wiley. com/author-resources/Journal-Authors/licensing/index.html, All co-authors are required to confirm that they have the

- 1 Optimization of Encapsulated Agents and Stirring Speed on the Physicochemical
- 2 Characteristics of Vacuum Dried Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin (Myristica fragrans)
- 3
- Victoria Kristina Ananingsih*, Bernadeta Soedarini, Cynthia Andriani, Bernardine
 Agatha Adi Konstantia, Birgitta Devina Santoso
- 6
- Food Technology Department, Faculty of Agricultural Technology, Soegijapranata
 Catholic University, Semarang 50234, Indonesia
- 9
- Jl. Pawiyatan Luhur IV No.1, Bendan Duwur, Gajahmungkur, Semarang 50234, Jawa
 Tengah; kristina@unika.ac.id
- 12
- 13 **6,489 words**
- 14
- 15 Vacuum Dried Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin
- 16
- 17

۱۸ ABSTRACT: Nutmeg seed oleoresin (Myristica fragrans Houtt) from nutmeg seed ۱۹ extraction contains active substances. However, oleoresins' active substances are ۲. commonly heat-sensitive, so encapsulation is needed. Encapsulation is the process ۲١ of wrapping particles containing active ingredients in a homogeneous or ۲۲ heterogeneous matrix that produces encapsulated powder. The objective of this ۲۳ study was to obtain the best combination of encapsulated agents concentration ۲٤ (maltodextrin and whey protein isolate) and agitation speed on the physicochemical ۲0 characteristics of nutmeg seed oleoresin encapsulated using a vacuum drying ۲٦ method. Encapsulation of nutmeg seed oleoresin was performed with comparative ۲۷ parameters namely agitation speed (3000, 3500, 4000 rpm), maltodextrin (MD) ۲۸ concentrations (ratio of MD to nutmeg seed oleoresin= 2:4, 4:4, 6:4), and Whey ۲٩ Protein Isolate (WPI) concentrations (ratio of WPI to nutmeg oleoresin= 6:4, 4:4, ۳. 2:4). The physicochemical analysis consisted of trapped oil content, antioxidant ۳١ activity, yields, water content, surface oil, water activity, and colour testing. The ٣٢ physicochemical data were further analysed by Response Surface Methodology ٣٣ (RSM) to get an optimum formula. The best formula was-resulted from a process at a ٣٤ an agitation speed of 3500 rpm and the addition of 4 grams of maltodextrin and 4 ۳0 grams of WPI. That formula had a trapped oil content 10.23%, antioxidant activity 37 91.50%, yield 66.79%, water activity 0.55, moisture content 8.63, colour intensity L* ۳۷ 65.47, a* 7.90, and b* 19.57. This formula could be applied to produce nutmeg seed ۳۸ oleoresin powder with good physicochemical properties.

۳٩

Keywords: Nutmeg oleoresin, encapsulation, vacuum drying, Response Surface
 Methodology

۶۳ Practical Application:

٤٤ Encapsulation of nutmeg seed oleoresin by vacuum drying produced a more stable ٤٥ powder with <u>a</u>longer shelf life compared to those in the form of nutmeg seed ٤٦ oleoresin. The viscous liquid of nutmeg seed oleoresin is prone to oxidation and ٤٧ degradation during storage. This encapsulated nutmeg seed oleoresin powder can be ٤٨ used as a food ingredient for different applications i.e. beverages, confectionery, products<u>,</u> ٤٩ bakery and soup seasonings.

٤٢

οΥ **1. Introduction**

Nutmeg (*Myristica fragrans* Houtt) is one of the main crop commodities in Indonesia,
 originating from Banda Island, Maluku. Indonesian nutmeg production continuously
 increases every year in parallel with increasing nutmeg exports each year. Nutmeg
 exports by Indonesia can supply up to 60% of the world's nutmeg demands.
 Currently, nutmeg is exported in the form of seeds and mace nutmeg, either as
 simplisia or powder. The selling value of nutmeg seeds could be improved by
 processing the raw products into nutmeg oleoresin with higher added value.

٦.

٦١ Nutmeg oleoresin (Myristica fragrans Houtt), as the result of fresh nutmeg seed ٦٢ extraction with ethanol, contains active substances. Nowadays, the utilization of ٦٣ nutmeg oleoresin as a flavouring agent is preferable-preferred by the food industry ٦٤ compared to fresh herbs, because of its stability and highly concentrated form. In ٦0 addition, oleoresin also has a homogenous flavour, aroma, pungency, standardized ٦٦ quality, and longer shelf life (Khadka, 2018). However, oleoresin is prone to oxidation ٦٧ by the presence of air, light and water. Therefore, the encapsulation process is ٦٨ carried out to create a barrier between the active substances and other external ٦٩ factors (Jafari, 2017).

٧٠

The most common coating materials for encapsulation are maltodextrin and arabic
 gum (Lantigua et al., 2011 and Elsebaie & Essa, 2018). Based on research by
 Zilberboim et al. (1986), the bell pepper oleoresin encapsulated with arabic gum was
 considered an expensive and non-feasible coating ingredient. Research by Nurlaili et
 al. (2014) reported that the microencapsulation of pulp ginger oleoresin with

٧٦ maltodextrin could reach an encapsulation efficiency of up to 22%. Therefore, 77 maltodextrin is preferably used as a coating agent because of the its affordable price, ۷٨ neutral taste and aroma, water-soluble and film-forming properties, low viscosity at ٧٩ high solids concentrations, and is less prone to oxidation (Fernandes et al., 2014). ٨٠ The disadvantage of using maltodextrin is unstable emulsion stability to trap ۸١ oleoresin. In this case, emulsifier addition could aid in improvinghelp to obtain a ۸۲ better coating performance. Whey protein isolate (WPI) is considered a suitable ۸۳ emulsifier in the food system. Principally, WPI will be absorbed in-at the interface of ٨ź oil-in-water (o/w) droplets and-where it forms a layer that can-protects droplets ٨٥ from coalescent (McCrae et al., 1999 in Assagaf et al., 2013). The agitation speed of ٨٦ the homogenizer could affect the droplet size. The higher the agitation speed, the ۸٧ smaller size of the oil droplet. Research by Jayanudin et al. (2018) reported that the ٨٨ higher agitation speed would increase the Reynolds number (Re) and reduce the ٨٩ emulsion droplet size.

٩.

Based on the explanation above, it is necessary to optimize the encapsulation of nutmeg oleoresin with different agitation speeds and ratios of maltodextrin and WPI.
Processing data by applying Response Surfaces Methodology (RSM) made this research important by analysing the optimum points and illustrating them in a threedimensional graph.

٩٦

- **2.** Materials and Methods
- ۹۸ 2.1. Materials

The extraction materials were nutmeg (*Myristica fragrans*), ethanol 96% solvent, and Whatman filter paper number 1. The encapsulation materials were extracted nutmeg oleoresin, maltodextrin (DE 15-20) and whey protein isolate (WPI) 90, and distilled water; while materials for analysis were DPPH (Diphenyl Picryl Hydrazyl) solution 0.06 mM, methanol 99.98%, ethanol 96%, and filter paper.

۱.٤

1.° **2.2.** Nutmeg Oleoresin Extraction with Ultrasound-assisted Extraction (UAE)

1.7 First, fresh nutmeg seeds were dried in the oven at 45°C for 24 hours. The dried 1.1 nutmeg seeds were cut and ground before sieving with 36 mesh-size. Nutmeg ۱.۸ powder was dissolved with in ethanol 96% by at a ratio of 1:10. The extraction was 1.9 carried out with an Erlenmeyer containing a sample, soaked in the ultrasonic cleaner 11. UC-10SD at 50°C and 45 kHz frequency for 37.5 minutes. After that, the mixture was 111 stored at chiller $\pm 4^{\circ}$ C for 30 minutes for fat phase separation (Rodianawati, 2010 117 and Assagaf et al., 2012), then filtered. The solvent in the filtrate was evaporated ۱۱۳ with a rotary vacuum evaporator (40°C, speed 52 rpm, and pressure 0.09MPa) until 112 all solvent evaporated, and a thick nutmeg oleoresin was obtained (Trendafilova et 110 al., 2010 modified). Oleoresin was kept in a glass bottle laminated by with aluminium ۱۱٦ foil and stored in a chiller.

117

11A 2.3. Response Surface Methodology (RSM)

The formula determination was generated from the Statistica 6.0 Response Surface Methodology (RSM) software as presented in Table 1 and produced 17 treatments for oleoresin encapsulation. The range of agitation speed was set between 2700 and 4000 rpm, and 0.64 and 7.36 gram for maltodextrin and WPI. RSM generated three ۱۲۳ levels of oleoresin and total coatings materials (MD and WPI) ratio. Ratio of 1:1 172 applied on treatment 3,7,12 and 13; Ratio of 1:2 applied on treatment 1, 4, 5, 8, 9, 170 10, 15, 16 and 17; Ratio of 1:3 applied on treatment 2, 6, 11 and 14. RSM with 122 factorial design, namely the Central Composite Design (CCD), could simplify the ۱۲۷ number of experiments and useful for testing multiple process variables. The CCD design is a 2^k factorial design or called as partial factorial. It is expanded by adding ۱۲۸ 129 observation points at the centre, so the predicted parameter coefficients will be on ۱۳. the quadratic surface (second order) (Montgomery, 2001 in Lubis, 2010). Generally, ۱۳۱ CCD consists of a factorial point (2^k) , axial point (2k), and a centre point (nc); where k ۱۳۲ is the variable number. The 2^k factorial design is used for experiments consisting of k ۱۳۳ factorial, where at the low level is coded as (-1), the middle level as (0), the high level ۱۳٤ as (+1), and the minimum and maximum level at the axial point as $(-\alpha)$ and $(+\alpha)$. The ١٣٥ calculation of the α value on the rotate able design CCD is as follows:

 $\gamma \pi = [\text{number of runs factorial point}]^{1/4} = (2^k)^{\frac{1}{4}}$.

In this study, 3 variables were used, so $\alpha = (2^3)^{1/4} = 1.682$. The magnitude of the variable with codes $-\alpha$ and $+\alpha$ could be calculated by the equation below:

 1^{mq} $-\alpha = (0) - 1.682 [(0) - (-1)]$ || $+ \alpha = (0) + 1.682 ((0) - (-1)]$

15. **RPM**: $-\alpha = (3500) - 1.682 [(3500) - (3000)] = 2659$

- $1 \le 1$ + $\alpha = (3500) + 1.682 [(3500) (3000)] = 4341$
- $1 \leq 7$ **MD**: $-\alpha = (4) 1.682 [(4) (2)] = 0.636$
- $1 \leq r$ + $\alpha = (4) + 1.682 [(4) (2)] = 7.364$
- 155 **WPI**: $-\alpha = (4) 1.682 [(4) (2)] = 0.636$
- $1 \le 0$ + $\alpha = (4) + 1.682 [(4) (2)] = 7.364$

Therefore, each factor would have 5 levels of test points. The results of CCD analysis are presented in the form of graphs based on mathematical models and respond surfaces. Those outputs are useful to predict the optimal value from the responses and to provide information on the interaction between the dependent and independent variables (Yousefi et al., 2016)

101

107

2.4. Encapsulation of Nutmeg Oleoresin

Maltodextrin (MD) and whey protein isolate (WPI) were prepared and weighed. The
 suspension was made by adding distilled water to the MD and WPI mixture followed
 by agitation with a rotor-stator homogenizer at a particular speed for 15 minutes.
 Subsequently, 4 grams of oleoresin were added to MD-WPI suspension. The mixture
 was homogenized at a particular speed for 10 minutes. Then, the mixture was
 poured into a glass pans to form a thin layer and dried using a vacuum oven at 50°C
 and 0.5 atm.

۱٦.

2.5. Analysis of Encapsulated Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin

Physicochemical analyses of encapsulated oleoresins were trapped oil content, antioxidant activity, yield, water content, surface oil, water activity, and colour intensity.

170

117 2.5.1. Trapped Oil Content (Asyhari, 2013 and Nugraheni et al., 2015)

Trapped oil content was estimated as outlined by Asyhari (2013) and Nugraheni et al.11A(2015). One gram of encapsulated sample was placed in an Erlenmeyer, dissolved in11920 ml of ethanol 96% and covered with aluminium foil. The sample was extracted by

۱۷. an ultrasonicator instrument at 50°C and 45 kHz frequency for 45 minutes. Filtration 171 was carried out to separate the insoluble polymer fragments. The filtrate was ۱۷۲ transferred into an empty porcelain cup of known weight and then put in an oven at 172 45°C for 24 hours. The measurement results were recorded as the final weight of the 175 cup. The total trapped oil yield was calculated by using the following formula: $Total Oil (\%) = \frac{Final Weight of Cup(g) - Empty Cup Weight(g)}{Weight of Sample (1 g)} \times 100\%$ 140 Trapped Oil (%) = Total Oil (%) - Surface Oil (%) 177 177 ۱۷۸ 2.5.2. Antioxidant Activity Analysis (Hussein et al., 2017 and Amin et al., 2013) 179 Approximately 0.5 gram of encapsulated sample was weighed, then dissolved in 5 ml ۱۸۰ of ethanol 96% and left for 2 hours. After that, 0.1 ml of liquid was taken and ۱۸۱ dissolved with 3.9 ml of DPPH solution in a test tube and homogenized. The test tube ۱۸۲ with sample was incubated into a dark room at 25°C for 30 minutes. After that, the ۱۸۳ sample absorbance was measured with a spectrophotometer at λ = 517 nm. The 115 blank sample (control) was made by replacing the sample with 0.1 ml of ethanol 110 (Hussein et al., 2017 and Amin et al., 2013). Antioxidant activity was calculated as % ۱۸٦ inhibition using the formula below: Antioxidant activity (%) = $\left[\frac{absorbance of \ control - absorbance \ of \ sample}{absorbance \ of \ control}\right] x100\%$ 147 ۱۸۸ 119 2.5.3. Yield Calculation (Yuniarti et al., 2013) 19. The yield was calculated based on the weight of the encapsulated powder produced

from vacuum drying compared to the total solids of the emulsion material

191

(encapsulating material and oleoresin) (Yuniarti et al., 2013). The yield content (dry basis) was determined by the following formula:

^η basis) was determined by the following formula:

$$\% Yield = \frac{weight of microcapsule powder(g)}{weight of emulsion solids (g)} x 100\%$$

190

197 2.5.4. Moisture Analysis (Lindani, 2016)

Moisture content of the sample was tested by using a moisture analyser (Lindani, 2016). Half until 1 gram of sample was placed into the tool. The instrument will heat
 the sample until the value of the water content is shown constantly (approximately for 10 minutes).

۲.۱

Y·Y2.5.5. Surface Oil Analysis (Hussein at al., 2017 and Yazicioglu et al., 2015 withY·Ymodification)

One gram of encapsulated sample was put into a centrifuge tube and 5 ml of ethanol
(96%) was added. The mixture was centrifuged at 1700 rpm for 15 minutes. After
that, the sample was filtered through filter paper and washed with 7.5 ml-mL of
ethanol twice. The filtrate was transferred in-to a cup of known weight, then dried in
an oven for 24 hours. After that, the sample was put in a desiccator for 15 minutes
and weighed as the final weight. The amount of surface oil was calculated by using
the formula below:

Surface Oil (%) = $\frac{\text{Cup final weight (g)} - \text{Empty cup weight (g)}_{Sample weight (1 g)} \times 100\%$

212

2.5.6. Water Activity (a_w) Analysis (AquaLab, 2016)

Y11Water activity was measured by using an aw meter (AquaLab, 2016). First, aY10homogenized sample was put into a clean and dry containers cup, completelyY11covering the bottom of the cup. The container was filled with samples until half aY11cup. The sample was measured with aw meter for 15 minutes and the resultY11appeared on display (reader).

- 219
- 22.

2.5.7. Colour Measurement (Nguyen et al., 2018 with modification)

Colour testing on encapsulate was carried out using Chroma meter Minolta CR400. After instrument calibration, the encapsulated sample was placed in a transparent plastic and a Chroma meter beam was released (Nguyen et al., 2018). The measurement showed the values of L*, a* and b*. The value of L* (lightness) of 100 indicates a light coloured sample. The value of a* indicates the tendency of red (+) and green (-). The b* value indicates yellow (+) and blue (-).

۲۲۷

3. Results and Discussion

YY9 3.1. Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin

Yr. Nutmeg seed oleoresin was processed by extraction using ethanol to dissolve the polar substances in nutmeg powder. The ethanol solvent was chosen because of its polarity by the presence of the -OH group to dissolve polar molecules. Oleoresin is a polar substance, while nutmeg butter is a non-polar substance. In addition, ethanol has a low boiling point at 78.4°C and 1 atm to easily remove the solvent from the extract (Susanti et al., 2012 and Yulianti, 2010).

۲۳٦

TTV 3.2. Encapsulation of Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin

The encapsulation process <u>aimed_aimes_</u>to protect the active substance from oxidation by air and light, thereby increasing the shelf life of the product. The emulsification <u>is</u> applied <u>at</u> various levels of agitation speed by using a homogenizer. Homogenizer could reduce the oil globules' size and stabilize the emulsion by preventing coalescent. The agitation speed during homogenization could affect the droplet size, where increasing the agitation speed would result in a smaller emulsion tiet.

250

252 In this study, a thin layer drying technique with a vacuum dryer was used. Principally, ۲٤٧ this technique will create a thin layer on the glass pan surface, followed by drying in ۲٤٨ the oven. The thickness of the layer should be uniform by assuming a uniform 729 temperature distribution (Onwude et al., 2016). This technique is very efficient with 10. low temperature ($<60^{\circ}$ C) application, so it will not damage the heat-sensitive 201 substances. In addition, the utilization of a vacuum oven at a low-pressure setting 202 (0.5 atm) would evaporate the water below the normal boiling point. It could 207 preserve the texture and appearance of the material, minimize the loss of active 70 É substances such as aroma and volatile compounds, reduce nutrition degradation, 200 reduce browning due to oxidation, and save energy (Prasetyaningrum, 2010).

202

The measurement results of trapped oil, antioxidant activity, yield, moisture content, surface oil, and water activity could be seen in Table 2. To evaluate the significance of each factor, an <u>An</u> analysis of variance (ANOVA) was performed.<u>to evaluate the</u> significance of each factor. ANOVA results showed that the polynomial quadratic model was a suitable model to represent the experimental data at a 95% confidence level. The correlation coefficient from ANOVA statistical analysis is shown in Table 3.
Based on the statistical analysis, agitation speed (RPM), MD, and WPI addition had a
significant effect on trapped oil, antioxidants, and yield (p < 0.05). Coefficient
Regression Tables to predict results through polynomial equations is-are presented
in Table 4.

۲٦۷

۲٦٨

3.3. Trapped Oil of Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin Encapsulate

Trapped oil content is a parameter representing how much oleoresin (core material)
is encapsulated by the coating material. By encapsulation, the core material or active
substances could be protected from degradation reactions, aroma and volatile
compound loss, thus maintaining flavour stability during storage (Kanakdande et al.,
2007). The result of trapped oil measurement is presented in the Experimental
Response Table (Table 2) and illustrated as a three-dimensional graph (Figure 1).

۲۷٥

272 Based on Figure 1 and Table 3, all three variables (RPM, MD, and WPI) had a 777 significant effect on trapped oil content. From the graphs (Figure 1), there is a rising 777 ridge chart where the critical point or stationary point is not in the experimental area ۲۷۹ but occupies the maximum point. Formula with the ratio of oleoresin and coating ۲٨٠ 1:1 had the highest trapped oil yield of 8.1-13.7%, followed by the formula with the ۲۸۱ ratio of 1:2 (4.5-10.9%) and 1:3 (6.1-8.6%), respectively. Maltodextrin as a coating ۲۸۲ material plays an important role in the effectiveness of oil trapping. If the coating ۲۸۳ material amount is insufficient to wrap core materials, there will be a lot of core ۲۸٤ material on the outer surface of the encapsulate (Jayanudin et al., 2017). WPI ۲۸٥ contains up to 90% of free proteins which makes those proteins easily dissolve in the ۲۸٦ emulsion system and interact with oil (oleoresin). Thus, the more WPI added, the ۲۸۷ more stable the emulsion system will be. In addition, whey protein could function as ۲۸۸ a suitable encapsulating agent when used in isolate form (Young et al., 1993 in and ۲۸۹ Nasrullah, 2010). In addition, emulsion stability is affected by the higher agitation ۲٩. speed, which reduces the size of the oil globule (oleoresin) where oil globules can be 291 completely covered by the coating material. The homogenization process can also 292 reduce the tendency of fat globules to clump or coalescence due to smaller droplet ۲۹۳ sizes (Tetra Pak, 2015).

89£

۲۹۰ 3.4. Surface Oil of Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin Encapsulate

As one of the encapsulation process parameters, surface oil indicates the amount of oil present on the surface and not encapsulated well. This parameter could analyse how much oleoresin can be encapsulated completely (Nasrullah, 2010). Nonencapsulated oleoresin or free oleoresin on the surface will be easily damaged due to evaporation and oxidation (Shaidi & Han, 1993 <u>in-and</u> Nasrullah, 2010).

۳.۱

۳.۲ Figure 2 showed shows a saddle system graph where the elliptical contour extends ۳.۳ significantly along with one of its main axes. The amount of coating material ۳.٤ influenced the surface oil of the encapsulate. Formula with a core and coating 7.0 material ratios of 1:1 showed the highest surface oil yield (5-9%), followed by the ۳.٦ ratio of 1:2 (2.3-7.7%) and 1:3 (2.9-4.2%), respectively. As presented in Table 2, it can ۳.۷ be seen that increasing the amount of coating material will reduce the amount of ۳.۸ surface oil. It might be due to the thicker encapsulated wall formed, so the amount ۳.٩ of oleoresin that comes out will be less (Jayanudin et al., 2017).

۳١.

311	Table 3 indicates that MD has a substantial effect on the surface oil amount. The low
۳۱۲	amount of maltodextrin to core material will result in insufficient coating material to
۳۱۳	cover the whole surface of the oleoresin droplets to strengthen the capsule wall
315	(Laohasongkrama et al., 2011). The addition of maltodextrin which is not balanced
310	with whey protein will increase the level of surface oil. Maltodextrin is a lipophobic
۳۱٦	compound, so it cannot bind to the oil molecule. So, it is not enough to emulsify the
۳۱۷	oil to be encapsulated, and result in a lot of oil that is not encapsulated. Therefore,
۳۱۸	the addition of WPI is used in the formula since WPI is considered a suitable
۳۱۹	emulsifier in the food system. WPI is primarily absorbed at the interface of oil-in-water (o/w)
۳۲.	droplets, where it forms a layer that protects the droplets from coalescence (McCrae et al., 1999)
371	Assagaf et al., 2013). Principally, WPI will be absorbed in the interface of oil-in-water
322	(o/w) droplets and forms a layer that can protect droplets from coalescent (McCrae
٣٢٣	et al., 1999 in Assagaf et al., 2013).
3 T T E	
370	3.5. Antioxidant Activity of Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin Encapsulate
322	An antioxidant is a substance to that inhibits or prevents oxidation in the substrate.
37 Y	Free radicals are unstable and highly reactive molecules with one or more unpaired
۳۲۸	electrons present in their outermost orbitals. To be more stable, free radicals tend to
۳۲۹	react with the other molecules to obtain electron pairs (Karim et al., 2015).
۳۳.	

In this research, 1,1-diphenyl2-picrylhydrazyl (DPPH) becomes became the free
 radical that reacted with active substances from the encapsulated oleoresin.
 Flavonoids in nutmeg oleoresin will donate hydrogen radicals (H+) or oxidized by the

TTEDPPH and result in more stability and low reactivity of free radicals (Amic et al., 2003TTEin-and_Karim et al., 2015). A study by Sharma et al. (2015) reported that totalTTEflavonoids in onions would decrease after heating at a high temperature. It indicatesTTEthat some flavonoids might be destroyed at high-temperature treatment. NutmegTTEoleoresin contains phytochemical compounds with antioxidant activity such asTTEmyristicin, isoeugenol, and eugenol compounds (Ginting et al., 2017).

٣٤٠

۳0١

3°07

321 Based on DPPH in vitro testing, the antioxidant activity of fresh nutmeg oleoresin 322 was 94.23%, while the antioxidant activity of nutmeg oleoresin encapsulate was ٣٤٣ ranging ranged from 13.31% to 91.33% (see Table 2). The lowest antioxidant activity 325 value was obtained from treatment 5 with an agitation speed of 4000 rpm, 6 grams ٣٤0 of maltodextrin, and 2 grams of whey protein isolate. The highest antioxidant activity 322 values were obtained from treatment 12 with an agitation speed of 3500 rpm, 0.64 ٣٤٧ grams of maltodextrin and 4 grams of whey protein isolate. Based on research by ٣٤٨ Ginting et al. (2017) about an-the antioxidant activity of n-hexane extract of nutmeg 329 Plantsplants, the antioxidant activity of nutmeg seeds was in the range of 60.86% ۳٥. and 87.85%.

From the results in Table 2, there was an interaction between surface oil andantioxidants, where-in encapsulates with low surface oil will have low antioxidantsand vice versa. In other words, the encapsulate with <u>a higher amount of surface oil</u>will be more susceptible to damage (oxidation) compared tothan an encapsulatesthat have low surface oil or not too highmoderate antioxidant activity.

Formatted: English (U.S.)

T01 In Figure 3., there are three graphs illustrated illustrating a maximum surface visual 809 where the critical point is in the experimental region and the stationary point is at ۳٦. the maximum point. The antioxidant activity values of encapsulate at three different 311 core and coating material ratios (1:1, 1:2, 1:3) were 53.79-91.33%, 13.31-91.71%, 322 and 17.25-61.07%, respectively. The high amount of maltodextrin as encapsulating ۳٦٣ material will produce low antioxidant activity if the ratio of MD:WPI is not 322 proportional. This is due to the wall being formed is getting thicker. Maltodextrin has 870 good stability against oil oxidation but has low oil retention, thus it is usually 322 combined with an emulsifier (Kenyon, 1995 in Nasrullah, 2010). If the composition of 311 maltodextrin is high and not balanced with whey protein, some oleoresin 377 compounds might be damage during drying process because their presence on the 379 surface. At treatment 17 (91.71%) (ratio of core material: coating = 1:2) antioxidants ۳۷. produced at a higher rate than treatment 12 (91.33%) (ratio of core material: coating 371 = 1:1), this can be caused by the number of solids that are too high which results in 377 puffing (swelling) and cracking of particles so that the encapsulate ruptured-ruptures ۳۷۳ because of high temperatures, and the core material comes out of the capsule (Li et 372 al., 2015).

340

^rv¹ **3.6.** Yield of Nutmeg Oleoresin Encapsulate

The yield (in percentage) of encapsulation could indicate how optimal the powder produced from each formula and how much loss in each formula is. Based on Table 2, the yield value of the encapsulate is not too high and ranges from 51.25% to 72.92%. It might be due to many product losses during the processing. Based on Table 3, the MD and WPI variables have a significant effect on the encapsulate yield $r_{\Lambda \Upsilon}$ (p<0.05). The addition of maltodextrin and whey protein isolate as a coating material has a higher total solid, thus giving a higher yield.

۳٨٤

Figure 4 is formingshows the formation of a saddle system graph where the elliptical contour extends significantly along one of its main axes and the rising ridge graph where the critical point or stationary point is not in the experimental area and the stationer-stationary point is at the maximum point. Formula with the ratio of core and coating material 1:1 has the lowest yield of encapsulate (51.25-68.75%), followed by the ration of 1:2 (60.00-72.92%), and 1:3 (63.46-71.88%), respectively.

391

797 3.7. Moisture Content of Nutmeg Oleoresin Encapsulate

۳۹۳ Moisture content is one of the encapsulate quality aspects. The higher moisture 392 content in encapsulates will trigger the oxidation and hydrolysis reaction resulting in 890 quality degradation and biological damage (Bakry et al., 2015). According to SNI 01-397 3709-1995, the maximum moisture content of spice powder is 12% (National 397 Standardization Agency 1995). The moisture content of encapsulated powder in this 397 study was in the range of 7.39% to 9.30%, so they it met the SNI water content 899 specification. Based on ANOVA results in Table 3, the WPI variable had a significant ٤.. effect on water content (p<0.05). Whey protein isolate is very hygroscopic or ٤.١ sensitive to moisture and stickiness (Hogan & Callaghan, 2013). Hence, the addition ٤٠٢ of whey protein isolate could increase the water content of the encapsulated ٤٠٣ powder.

٤.٤

٤.0 Figure 5 shows the rising ridge graph where the critical point or stationary point is ٤.٦ not in the experimental region and the stationer stationary point is at the maximum ٤٠٧ point. The addition of coating material affected on the water content of ٤٠٨ encapsulates powder. The lowest water content was obtained from formula with the ٤.٩ ratio of core and coating material 1:1, while the highest water content was from the ٤١. formula with ratio of 1:3. The addition of whey protein isolate has a significant effect ٤١١ in increasing the water content of the encapsulated powder due to the hygroscopic ٤١٢ properties of whey protein. Based on Prasetyo in Ramadhani (2006), too much ٤١٣ addition of coating material as a filler will cause clotting and case hardening. As a 212 result, the moisture inside the droplet cannot come out and contact with the drying ٤١٥ air. The droplet surface is covered by solid substances and will minimize the waterhot air contact area. Therefore, adding coating material could increase the water 217 ٤١٧ content.

٤١٨

٤19

3.8. Water Activity of Nutmeg Oleoresin Encapsulate

٤٢٠ Water activity (a_w) indicates the amount of free water used by microorganisms to ٤٢١ grow. Therefore, this parameter is important to define the microbiology ٤٢٢ microbiological risk in encapsulate powder and the stability during storage. The ٤٢٣ water activities activity values of oleoresin encapsulate in this study were in the ٤٢٤ range 0.54 - 0.58. Tapia et al. (2020) stated that the food product must have water 270 activity below 0.6, to prevent the mold growth. Based on ANOVA analysis in Table 3, 522 no variable affect water activity in the powder. It might be due to the vacuum oven ٤٢٧ ability to produce water vapor during off condition. In addition, whey protein isolate ^{£YA} properties is hygroscopic, so that the water vapor in the vacuum oven will be easily
^{£YA} absorbed <u>and this will increase the water activity.</u>

٤٣٠

Figure 6 shows the graphs that form various models. The interaction graph of agitation speed with maltodextrin shows the falling ridge graph where the critical point or stationary point is not in the experimental area and the stationary point is at the minimum point. The interaction graph of mixing speed with whey protein shows the saddle graph system where elliptical contours extend significantly along one of its main axes (Taylor & Francis, 2008).

٤٣٧

٤٣٨ **3.9.** Colour Analysis of Nutmeg Oleoresin Encapsulate

The colour of the encapsulated powder indicated the physical properties based on ٤٣٩ ٤٤. the constituent materials. Principally, the Chroma meter worked works through the ٤٤١ interaction of energy- diffuse diffuse-light and atoms or molecules of an object being 558 analyzed. The light source of a xenon lamp was beamed onto the sample surface and 558 was reflected back to the spectral sensor. Six high-sensitivity silicon photocells with a 222 dual-back beam system measured the reflected light of the sample (Candra et al., 220 2014). The L* indicator was indicated by a value of 0 (black/dark) to 100 227 (light/white). The reflected light of the L* indicator showed the achromatic colors of ٤٤V white, gray and black. The a* indicator showed a chromatic color of red if positive ٤ź٨ and green if negative. A positive b* indicator indicated a yellow chromatic colur and 559 a negative b* value indicated a blue colour intensity.

20.

Based on Table 5, the difference in agitation speed showed no effect on colour of encapsulated powder, while the addition of a coating material increased the values of L and b*, and decreased the value of a*. The addition of coating material could reduce the density of brown colour of oleoresin. However, differences in coating formulations did not produce significant differences in values of L, a* and b*. The brown colour of encapsulated powder decreased as <u>the</u> amount of coating material increased.

٤0٨

٤٥٩ 3.10. Optimization of Process Parameter Combinations

٤٦. The optimum point was predicted by Response Surface Methodology from the 571 combination of optimal conditions and interactions between independent variables 577 (Ratnawati et al., 2018). In the optimization step, the independent variables for ٤٦٣ optimization were trapped oil, antioxidant activity, and yield. Those variables ٤٦٤ (parameters) could reflect the effectiveness and efficiency of encapsulation. The 270 Statistica 6.0 RSM program generated five optimum formula solutions as presented 277 in Table 6. Process conditions with an agitation speed of 3500 rpm, 4 grams of ٤٦٧ maltodextrin and 4 grams of whey protein isolate would produce an encapsulate ٤٦٨ powder with characteristics for an optimization target of 79.39%. Then, the optimum 579 formula could be achieved by using the polynomial quadratic models shown in Table ٤٧٠ 4.

٤٧١

$\xi \forall \forall$ 4. Conclusion

 $\xi \vee \psi$ The nutmeg oleoresin encapsulation process was optimized by the Response Surface $\xi \vee \xi$ Methodology (desirability value of 0.794) and resulted in following setting variable:

٤٧٥	3500 rpm of agitation speed, 4 grams of maltodextrin, and 4 grams of whey protein
277	isolate addition. It means that those setting variables could produce nutmeg
٤٧٧	oleoresin encapsulates as desired (optimum) is 79.39%. The optimum formula had a
٤٧٨	trapped oil content of 10.23%, antioxidant activity of 91.50%, yield of 66.79%, water
٤٧٩	activity of 0.551, moisture content 8.63% , and colour properties L=65.47, a*= 7.90,
٤٨٠	and b*=19.570. As a suggestion, further research on the stability and safety (in vivo
٤٨١	testing) of nutmeg oleoresin encapsulate needs to be done.

٤٨٢

۶۸۳ Funding

This research was fully funded by the Ministry of Research and Higher Education,
 number: 010/L6/AK/SP2H.1/RESEARCH/2019.

٤٨٦

٤٨٧ Acknowledgments

The authors would like to thank all those who have contributed to assist in this
 research, especially colleagues and students in the research group of Food
 Processing and Engineering, Soegijapranata Catholic University.

291

٤٩٢ Conflicts of Interest

 $\mathfrak{E}\mathfrak{P}^{\mathfrak{T}}$ There are none to declare.

595

- ٤٩٥ Data Availability
- ٤٩٦ The data is not publicly available.

٤٩٧ References

591 Amin, A., Wunas, J., & Anin, Y. M. (2013). Antioxidant Activity Test and Ethanol 299 Extract of Klika Faloak (Sterculia quadrifida R.Br) Using the DPPH Method. Jurnal 0.. Fitofarmaka Indonesia, 2(2), 111-114. 0.1 https://media.neliti.com/media/publications/259622-uji-aktivitas-antioksidan-0.7 ekstrak-etanol-5e322216.pdf 0.7 0.2 AquaLab. (2016). Water Activity Meter. Decagon Devices, Inc. Version: August 2, 0.0 2016. https://www.meyer.ca/wp-content/uploads/2014/08/13484 AquaLab-Series-0.7 Four Web.pdf 0.1 0.1 Assagaf, M., Hastuti, P., Yuliani, S., & Supriyadi. (2013). Characteristics of 0.9 Microencapsulated Nutmeg Oleoresin: Determination of the Ratio of Whey Protein 01. Agritech. Concentrate: Maltodextrin. 011 http://library.binus.ac.id/eColls/eJournal/KaraketeristikOreleorisin Pala Yang 017 Dimikroenkapsulasi Penentuan Rasio Whey protein concertrate WPC Maltodekstrin 017 (MD).pdf 012 010 Asyhari, A. (2013). Formulation and Physical Evaluation of Microcapsules from 017 Soybean Extract (Glycine max L. Merr) by Solvent Evaporation Method. In Skripsi ٥١٧ Proaram Studi Farmasi, Universitas Hasanuddin Makassar. 011 https://doi.org/10.1017/CBO9781107415324.004 019 07. Bakry, Amr M; Shabbar Abbas, Barkat Ali, Hamid Majeed, Mohamed Y. Abouelwafa, 071 Ahmed Mousa, and Li Liang. (2015). Microencapsulation of Oils : A Comprehensive 077 Review of Benefits, Techniques, and Aplications. Comprehensive Reviews in Food 077 Science and Food Safety, 15. doi: 10.1111/1541-4337.12179. ٥٢٤ 070 Candra, F. N., Riyadi, P. H., & Wijayanti, I. (2014). Utilization of Karagenan (Euchema 077 cottoni) as Emulsifier to Stability of Nila (Oreochromis niloticus) Fish Meat Ball ٥٢٧ Manufacturing by Cold Storage Temperature. Jurnal Pengolahan dan Bioteknologi ٥٢٨ Perikanan, Hasil 3(1), 167-176. 089 https://media.neliti.com/media/publications/125912-ID-none.pdf ٥٣. 031 Elsebaie, E. M., & Essa, R. Y. (2018). Microencapsulation of red onion peel ٥٣٢ polyphenols fractions by freeze drying technicality and its application in cake. Journal ٥٣٣ of Food Processing and Preservation, 42(7), e13654. ٥٣٤ Fernandes, Regiane Victória de Barros; Soraia Vilela Borges, and Diego Alvarenga ٥٣٥ Botrel. (2014). Gum Arabic/Starch/Maltodextrin/Inulin as Wall Materials on The 077 Microencapsulation Of Rosemary Essential Oil. Carbohydrate Polymers, 101, 524-٥٣٧ 532. http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.carbpol.2013.09.083 ٥٣٨ ٥٣٩ Ginting, B., Mustanir, Helwati, H., Desiyana, L. S., Eralisa, & Mujahid, R. (2017). 02. Antioxidant Activity of N-Hexane Extract of Nutmeg Plants from South Aceh 051 Province. Jurnal Natural, 17(1), 39. https://doi.org/10.24815/jn.v17i1.6969 ٥٤٢

Hogan, S.A., & D. J. O. Callaghan. (2013). Moisture Sorption and Stickiness Behaviour
 of Hydrolysed Whey Protein/Lactose Powders. *Journal Dairy Sci. & Technol*, 93, 505–
 521. DOI 10.1007/s13594-013-0129-2

٥٤٧ Hussein, A. M. S., Kamil, M. M., Lotfy, S. N., Mahmoud, K. F., Mehaya, F. M., & 051 Mohammad, A. A. (2017). Influence of Nano-encapsulation on Chemical 059 Composition, Antioxidant Activity and Thermal Stability of Rosemary Essential Oil. 00. Technology, 12(3), American Journal of Food 170-177. 001 https://doi.org/10.3923/ajft.2017.170.177

007

027

Jafari, Seid Mahdi. (2017). An Overview of Nanoencapsulation Techniques and Their
 Classification. Journal Nanoencapsulation Technologies for the Food and
 Nutraceutical Industries. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809436-5.00001-X

ooVJayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple EmpiricalooAEquations for Predicting Particle Size of Red Ginger Oleoresin Encapsulation.ooAALCHEMYJurnalPenelitianKimia,14(2),ooAhttps://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192

071

متلا Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of متلا Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. *ALCHEMY* متلا *Jurnal Penelitian Kimia*, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406

070

Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin
 Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin
 and Modified Starch. Journal Carbohydrate Polymers, 67, 536–541.
 DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023

Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (*Euphorbia* hirta L.). Jurnal Akademika Kimia, 4(2), 56–63.

ovideKhadka, Gyanu. (2018). Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon OleoresinovideIncorporated Yoghurt. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science andovideTechnologyTechnologyTribhuvanuniversityNepal.ovidehttp://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?g=cache:IDVyFeYhngMJ:202.45.14

6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne-

ov۹ pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk&gl=id

٥٨.

Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes
 Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air
 Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. *Journal Drying Technology*, 29, 520–
 526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780

010

Laohasongkrama, Kalaya; Tida Mahamaktudsanee, Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri. (2011).
 Microencapsulation of Macadamia Oil by Spray Drying. *Procedia Food Science*, 1,

- °^{∧∧} 1660 1665.
- ٥٨٩

09. Li, J., Shanbai Xiong, Fang Wang, Joe M. Regenstein, and Ru Liu. (2015). Optimization 091 of Microencapsulation of Fish Oil with Gum Arabic/Casein/Beta-Cyclodextrin 098 Journal Mixtures by Spray Drying. of Food Science, 80(7). ٥٩٣ https://doi.org/10.1111/1750-3841.12928 095 090 Lindani, A. (2016). Comparison of Moisture Analyzer Measurement Method with Oven Method on Cookies Sandwich Biscuits Products at PT Mondelez Indonesia 097 091 Manufacturing. Institut Pertanian Bogor, Fakultas Teknologi Pertanian. 091 099 Lubis, A. (2010). Study on the Use of Response Surface Methods for Post-Harvest ٦.. Optimization. Sekolah Pascasarjana Institut Pertanian Bogor. ٦.١ ٦.٢ Nasrullah, F. (2010). The Effect of the Composition of the Encapsulating Material on 7.7 the Quality of Black Pepper Oleoresin Microcapsules (Piper ningrum L.). Faculty of 7.5 Agricultural Technology, Institut Pertanian Bogor. https://docplayer.info/50854863-7.0 Skripsi-pengaruh-komposisi-bahan-pengkapsul-terhadap-kualitas-mikrokapsul-٦.٦ oleoresin-lada-hitam-piper-nigrum-l-oleh-fahmi-nasrullah-f.html 7.7 ٦٠٨ Nguyen, T.-T., Phan-Thi, H., Pham-Hoang, B.-N., Ho, P.-T., Tran, T. T. T., & Waché, Y. 7.9 (2018). Encapsulation of Hibiscus sabdariffa L. anthocyanins as natural colours in ٦١. veast. Food Research International. 107. 275-280. 111 doi:10.1016/j.foodres.2018.02.044. 717 https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0963996918301376 717 712 Nugraheni, A., Yunarto, N., & Sulistyaningrum, N. (2015). Optimization of Java 710 Turmeric (Curcuma xanthorrhiza Roxb.) Extract Microencapsulation Formula using 717 Water Based Coating Material. Jurnal Kefarmasian Indonesia, 5(2), 98-105. 717 https://doi.org/10.22435/jki.v5i2.4404.98-105 714 219 Nurlaili, Fatchul Anam; Purnama Darmadii; Yudi Pranoto. (2014). Microencapsulation ٦٢. of Pulp Ginger (Zingiber officinale var.Rubrum) Oleoresin with Maltodextrin Coating. 221 Jurnal Agritech, 34(1). 777 https://jurnal.ugm.ac.id/agritech/article/download/9518/7093 777 7 T É Onwude, Daniel I., Norhashila Hashim, Rimfiel B. Janius, Nazmi Mat Nawi, dan 220 Khalina Abdan. (2016). Modeling the Thin-Layer Drying of Fruits and Vegetables: A 777 Review. Comprehensive Reviews in Food Science and Food Safety, 15. doi: 777 10.1111/1541-4337.12196 ٦٢٨ 779 Prasetyaningrum, A. (2010). Design of Vacuum Drying Oven and Its Application as a ٦٣. Drying Device Low Temperature. Riptek, 45-53. at 4(1), ٦٣١ https://www.academia.edu/27338855/rancang_bangun_oven_drying_vaccum_dan_ 777 aplikasinya sebagai alat pengering pada suhu rendah ٦٣٣ 772 Purnamayati, L., Dewi, E. N., & Kurniasih, R. A. (2016). Physical Characteristics of

Spirulina Phycocyanin Microcapsule using different concentration of coating

٦٣0

777 materials. Jurnal Teknologi Hasil Pertanian, doi: 9 (1), 1-8. ٦٣٧ https://doi.org/10.20961/jthp.v9i2.12844. ٦٣٨ 739 Ramadhani, Devi. (2016). "Effect of Maltodextrin and Egg White Concentration on ٦٤. Characteristics of Red Dragon Fruit Powder Drink (Hylocereus polyrhizus)." Skripsi 751 Fakultas Teknik Prodi Teknologi Pangan Universitas Pasundan Bandung. 727 https://jurnal.ugm.ac.id/agritech/article/download/12725/23987. 757 722 Ratnawati, S.E., N Ekantari, R.W. Pradipta, dan B.L. Pramita. (2018). The Application 720 of Response Surface Methodology (RSM) on the Optimization of Catfish Bone 727 Calcium Extraction. Jurnal Perikanan Universitas Gajah Mada, 20(1). ٦٤٧ ٦٤٨ Sharma, K., Eun Young Ko, Awraris D. Assefa, Soyoung Ha, Shivraj H. Nile, Eul Tai Lee, 729 and Se Won Park. (2015). Temperature-Dependent Studies on The Total Phenolics, 70. Flavonoids, Antioxidant Activities, and Sugar Content in Six Onion Varieties. Journal 201 of Food and Drug Analysis, 23, 243-252. http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.jfda.2014.10.005 707 708 Tapia, M. S., Alzamora, S. M., & Chirife, J. (2020). Effects of Water Activity (aw) on 702 Microbial Stability as a Hurdle in Food Preservation. In G. V. Barbosa-Canovas, A. J. 200 Fontana, Jr., S. J. Schmidt, & T. P. Labuza (Ed.), Water Activity in Foods: Fundamentals 707 and Applications, Second Edition (pp. 323-355). John Wiley & Sons, Inc. 707 doi:10.1002/9781118765982.ch14. 701 https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/abs/10.1002/9781118765982.ch14 209 77. Taylor & Francis. (2008). Optimization in Food Engineering. European Journal of 171 Operational Research, 14. https://doi.org/10.1016/0377-2217(83)90276-x 777 ٦٦٣ Tetra Pak. (2015). Dairy Processing Handbook. Tetra Pak International. ISBN 775 9789176111321.https://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:YaS0OY 770 LwZgMJ:https://dairyprocessinghandbook.tetrapak.com/chapter/homogenizers+&cd 777 =9&hl=ban&ct=clnk&gl=id 777 777 Trendafilova, A., Chanev, C., & Todorova, M. (2010). Ultrasound-Assisted Extraction 779 of Alantolactone and Isoalantolactone From Inula Helenium Roots. Pharmacognosy ٦٧. Magazine, 6(23), 234. https://doi.org/10.4103/0973-1296.66942 171 777 Yousefi, N., M Pazouki, F. A. Hesari, M Alizadeh. (2016). Statistical Evaluation of the 777 Pertinent Parameters in Biosynthesis of Ag/MWf-CNT Composites Using Plackett-٦٧٤ Burman Design and response Surface Methodology. Iran. Journal Che. Chem.Eng., 270 35(2). 777 777 Yazicioglu, B., Serpil S., & Gulum S. (2015). Microencapsulation of Wheat Germ Oil. 777 Journal Food Science Technology, 52(6), 3590-3597. 779 https://www.researchgate.net/publication/277602302 Microencapsulation of whe ٦٨٠ at germ oil ٦٨١

TAYZilberboim, R., Kopelman, I. J., & Talmon, Y. (1986). Microencapsulation by aTAYDehydrating Liquid: Retention of Paprika Oleoresin and Aromatic Esters. Journal ofTAYFoodScience, 51(5), 1301–1306. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1365-

۲۸۰ 2621.1986.tb13110.x



Re: Journal of Food Processing and Preservation

Journal of Food Processing and Preservation <JFPPwiley@wiley.com> To: "kristina@unika.ac.id" <kristina@unika.ac.id> Mon, Aug 8, 2022 at 9:11 PM

Dear Dr. Victoria Ananingsih,

Thank you for your email.

Please kindly log in using your login credentials for the REX platform, the manuscript will be available on your author dashboard. If you still find any difficulty accessing your manuscript, please send us a screenshot of the step you are stuck and I will make sure to forward it to the team for further clarification.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.

Best Wishes, Swathi

Swathi Kumara Venkatesan Editorial Office Journal of Food Processing and Preservation JFPPWiley@wiley.com

From: Victoria Ananingsih <onbehalfof@manuscriptcentral.com> Sent: 05 August 2022 07:20 To: Journal of Food Processing and Preservation <JFPPWiley@wiley.com> Subject: Journal of Food Processing and Preservation

This is an external email.

05-Aug-2022

JFPP-06-22-1489 - Optimization of Encapsulated Agents and Agitation Speed on the Physicochemical Characteristics of Vacuum Dried Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin (Myristica fragrans)

Dear Editorial Office,

I have revised the manuscript and sent it to Prof. Anet Rezek Jambrak, Should I submit it to the link of ScholarOne Manuscript as well, however I could not find the button for submission of revised manuscript. I am looking forward to hearing from you.

Thank you.

Sincerely, Dr. Victoria Ananingsih Journal of Food Processing and Preservation The contents of this email and any attachments are confidential and intended only for the person or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use, review, distribution, reproduction or any action taken in reliance upon this message is strictly prohibited. If you received this message in error, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete all copies of the email and any attachments. Click here for translations of this disclaimer.

4. Submission of Revised Manuscript



Kristina Ananingsih <kristina@unika.ac.id>

Thu, Aug 4, 2022 at 6:47 PM

Journal of Food Processing and Preservation - Decision on Manuscript ID JFPP-06-22-1489

Kristina Ananingsih <kristina@unika.ac.id> To: anet.rezek.jambrak@pbf.hr

Dear Prof. Anet Rezek Jambrak, Associate Editor Comments to Author

We have revised the manuscript based on the comments. Could you please find attached files of our revised manuscript. We are looking forward to your feedback.

Thank you.

Kind regards, Victoria Kristina Ananingsih

[Quoted text hidden]

Victoria Kristina Ananingsih

Lecturer & Researcher Food Technology Department Faculty of Agricultural Technology Soegijapranata Catholic University Semarang-Indonesia www.unika.ac.id

Powered by unika.ac.id mail service

2 attachments

JFPP_main body.docx
 72K

JFPP_Revision.docx 13K Reviewer(s)' Comments to Author: Reviewer #1 Comments to the Author all comments are attached in PDF file

Revision #1

We have already revised it (attached)

Reviewer: 2 Comments to the Author

Dear Authors;

The article deals with the production of oleoresin and its encapsulation. However, I could not find any information about the composition of this oleoresin, both in the introduction and the results of the article. In the introduction, it is mentioned that the stability of oleoresin is good and the concentration is intense. The antioxidant effect has been examined and found to be effective, why does this effect arise?

Revision #2 We have added literature and results

Line 77-78

Nutmeg oleoresin extracted by maceration method obtained 20.07 ± 0.23% oleoresin in dry weight. Line 249-250 The yield of oleoresin produced in this research was 30.4%. Line 294-295 The higher trapped oil showed the effectiveness of encapsulation in maintaining oleoresin of nutmeg. Line 360-361

Application of this process conditions could maintain the antioxidant activity of nutmeg seed oleoresin.

- 1 Optimization of Encapsulated Agents and Stirring Speed on the Physicochemical
- 2 Characteristics of Vacuum Dried Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin (Myristica fragrans)
- 3
- Victoria Kristina Ananingsih*, Bernadeta Soedarini, Cynthia Andriani, Bernardine
 Agatha Adi Konstantia, Birgitta Devina Santoso
- 6
- Food Technology Department, Faculty of Agricultural Technology, Soegijapranata
 Catholic University, Semarang 50234, Indonesia
- 9
- Jl. Pawiyatan Luhur IV No.1, Bendan Duwur, Gajahmungkur, Semarang 50234, Jawa
 Tengah; kristina@unika.ac.id
- 12
- 13 **6,489 words**
- 14
- 15 Vacuum Dried Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin
- 16
- 17
18 ABSTRACT: Nutmeg seed oleoresin (Myristica fragrans Houtt) from nutmeg seed 19 extraction contains active substances. However, oleoresins' active substances are 20 commonly heat-sensitive, so encapsulation is needed. Encapsulation is the process of 21 wrapping particles containing active ingredients in a homogeneous or heterogeneous 22 matrix that produces encapsulated powder. The objective of this study was to obtain 23 the best combination of encapsulated agents concentration (maltodextrin and whey 24 protein isolate) and agitation speed on the physicochemical characteristics of nutmeg 25 seed oleoresin encapsulated using a vacuum drying method. Encapsulation of nutmeg 26 seed oleoresin was performed with comparative parameters namely agitation speed 27 (3000, 3500, 4000 rpm), maltodextrin (MD) concentrations (ratio of MD to nutmeg 28 seed oleoresin= 2:4, 4:4, 6:4), and Whey Protein Isolate (WPI) concentrations (ratio of 29 WPI to nutmeg oleoresin= 6:4, 4:4, 2:4). The physicochemical analysis consisted of 30 trapped oil content, antioxidant activity, yields, water content, surface oil, water 31 activity, and colour testing. The physicochemical data were further analysed by 32 Response Surface Methodology (RSM) to get an optimum formula. The best formula 33 resulted from a process at an agitation speed of 3500 rpm and the addition of 4 grams 34 of maltodextrin and 4 grams of WPI. That formula had a trapped oil content 10.23%, 35 antioxidant activity 91.50%, yield 66.79%, water activity 0.55, moisture content 8.63, 36 colour intensity L* 65.47, a* 7.90, and b* 19.57. This formula could be applied to 37 produce nutmeg seed oleoresin powder with good physicochemical properties.

38

39 Keywords: Nutmeg oleoresin, encapsulation, vacuum drying, Response Surface40 Methodology

41

42

Practical Application:

Encapsulation of nutmeg seed oleoresin by vacuum drying produced a more stable powder with a longer shelf life compared to those in the form of nutmeg seed oleoresin. The viscous liquid of nutmeg seed oleoresin is prone to oxidation and degradation during storage. This encapsulated nutmeg seed oleoresin powder can be used as a food ingredient for different applications i.e. beverages, confectionery, bakery products, and soup seasonings.

67 Introduction

Nutmeg (*Myristica fragrans* Houtt) is one of the main crop commodities in Indonesia, originating from Banda Island, Maluku. Indonesian nutmeg production continuously increases every year in parallel with increasing nutmeg exports each year. Nutmeg exports by Indonesia can supply up to 60% of the world's nutmeg demand. Currently, nutmeg is exported in the form of seeds and mace nutmeg, either as simplisia or powder. The selling value of nutmeg seeds could be improved by processing the raw products into nutmeg oleoresin with higher added value.

75

76 Nutmeg oleoresin (Myristica fragrans Houtt), as the result of fresh nutmeg seed 77 extraction with ethanol, contains active substances. Nutmeg oleoresin extracted by 78 maceration method obtained $20.07 \pm 0.23\%$ oleoresin in dry weight (Assagaf, et al., 79 2012). Nowadays, the utilization of nutmeg oleoresin as a flavouring agent is preferred 80 by the food industry compared to fresh herbs, because of its stability and highly 81 concentrated form. In addition, oleoresin also has a homogenous flavour, aroma, 82 pungency, standardized quality, and longer shelf life (Khadka, 2018). However, 83 oleoresin is prone to oxidation by the presence of air, light and water. Therefore, the 84 encapsulation process is carried out to create a barrier between the active substances 85 and other external factors (Jafari, 2017).

86

The most common coating materials for encapsulation are maltodextrin and arabic gum (Lantigua et al., 2011 and Elsebaie & Essa, 2018). Based on research by Zilberboim et al. (1986), the bell pepper oleoresin encapsulated with arabic gum was considered an expensive and non-feasible coating ingredient. Research by Nurlaili et al. (2014)

91 reported that the microencapsulation of pulp ginger oleoresin with maltodextrin could 92 reach an encapsulation efficiency of up to 22%. Therefore, maltodextrin is preferably 93 used as a coating agent because of its affordable price, neutral taste and aroma, 94 water-soluble and film-forming properties, low viscosity at high solids concentrations, 95 and is less prone to oxidation (Fernandes et al., 2014). The disadvantage of using 96 maltodextrin is unstable emulsion stability to trap oleoresin. In this case, emulsifier 97 addition could aid in improving coating performance. Whey protein isolate (WPI) is 98 considered a suitable emulsifier in the food system. Principally, WPI will be absorbed 99 at the interface of oil-in-water (o/w) droplets where it forms a layer that protects 100 droplets from coalescent (McCrae et al., 1999 in Assagaf et al., 2013). The agitation 101 speed of the homogenizer could affect the droplet size. The higher the agitation speed, 102 the smaller size of the oil droplet. Research by Jayanudin et al. (2018) reported that 103 the higher agitation speed would increase the Reynolds number (Re) and reduce the 104 emulsion droplet size.

105

Based on the explanation above, it is necessary to optimize the encapsulation of
nutmeg oleoresin with different agitation speeds and ratios of maltodextrin and WPI.
Processing data by applying Response Surfaces Methodology (RSM) made this
research important by analysing the optimum points and illustrating them in a threedimensional graph.

111

112 **1. Materials and Methods**

113 **2.1.** Materials

The extraction materials were nutmeg (*Myristica fragrans*), ethanol 96% solvent, and Whatman filter paper number 1. The encapsulation materials were extracted nutmeg oleoresin, maltodextrin (DE 15-20) and whey protein isolate (WPI) 90, and distilled water; while materials for analysis were DPPH (Diphenyl Picryl Hydrazyl) solution 0.06 mM, methanol 99.98%, ethanol 96%, and filter paper.

119

120 **2.2.** Nutmeg Oleoresin Extraction with Ultrasound-assisted Extraction (UAE)

121 First, fresh nutmeg seeds were dried in the oven at 45°C for 24 hours. The dried 122 nutmeg seeds were cut and ground before sieving with 36 mesh-size. Nutmeg powder 123 was dissolved in ethanol 96% at a ratio of 1:10. The extraction was carried out with an 124 Erlenmeyer containing a sample, soaked in the ultrasonic cleaner UC-10SD at 50°C and 125 45 kHz frequency for 37.5 minutes. After that, the mixture was stored at chiller ± 4°C 126 for 30 minutes for fat phase separation (Rodianawati, 2010 and Assagaf et al., 2012), 127 then filtered. The solvent in the filtrate was evaporated with a rotary vacuum 128 evaporator (40°C, speed 52 rpm, and pressure 0.09MPa) until all solvent evaporated, 129 and a thick nutmeg oleoresin was obtained (Trendafilova et al., 2010 modified). 130 Oleoresin was kept in a glass bottle laminated with aluminium foil and stored in a 131 chiller.

- 132
- 133 **2.3.** Response Surface Methodology (RSM)

The formula determination was generated from the Statistica 6.0 Response Surface Methodology (RSM) software as presented in Table 1 and produced 17 treatments for oleoresin encapsulation. The range of agitation speed was set between 2700 and 4000 rpm, and 0.64 and 7.36 gram for maltodextrin and WPI. RSM generated three levels 138 of oleoresin and total coatings materials (MD and WPI) ratio. Ratio of 1:1 applied on 139 treatment 3,7,12 and 13; Ratio of 1:2 applied on treatment 1, 4, 5, 8, 9, 10, 15, 16 and 140 17; Ratio of 1:3 applied on treatment 2, 6, 11 and 14. RSM with factorial design, 141 namely the Central Composite Design (CCD), could simplify the number of 142 experiments and useful for testing multiple process variables. The CCD design is a 2^k 143 factorial design or called as partial factorial. It is expanded by adding observation 144 points at the centre, so the predicted parameter coefficients will be on the quadratic 145 surface (second order) (Montgomery, 2001 in Lubis, 2010). Generally, CCD consists of 146 a factorial point (2^k), axial point (2k), and a centre point (nc); where k is the variable 147 number. The 2^k factorial design is used for experiments consisting of k factorial, where 148 at the low level is coded as (-1), the middle level as (0), the high level as (+1), and the 149 minimum and maximum level at the axial point as $(-\alpha)$ and $(+\alpha)$. The calculation of 150 the α value on the rotate able design CCD is as follows:

151
$$\alpha = [number of runs factorial point]^{1/4} = (2^k)^{\frac{1}{4}}$$

152 In this study, 3 variables were used, so $\alpha = (2^3)^{1/4} = 1.682$. The magnitude of the

153 variable with codes $-\alpha$ and $+\alpha$ could be calculated by the equation below:

154 $-\alpha = (0) - 1.682 [(0) - (-1)]$ || $+\alpha = (0) + 1.682 ((0) - (-1)]$

155 **RPM**: -α = (3500) - 1.682 [(3500) - (3000)] = 2659

156 +
$$\alpha$$
 = (3500) + 1.682 [(3500) - (3000)] = 4341

157 **MD**:
$$-\alpha = (4) - 1.682 [(4) - (2)] = 0.636$$

158 +
$$\alpha$$
 = (4) + 1.682 [(4) - (2)] = 7.364

159 **WPI**:
$$-\alpha = (4) - 1.682 [(4) - (2)] = 0.636$$

160 + α = (4) + 1.682 [(4) - (2)] = 7.364

Therefore, each factor would have 5 levels of test points. The results of CCD analysis are presented in the form of graphs based on mathematical models and respond surfaces. Those outputs are useful to predict the optimal value from the responses and to provide information on the interaction between the dependent and independent variables (Yousefi et al., 2016)

166

167 **2.4.** Encapsulation of Nutmeg Oleoresin

Maltodextrin (MD) and whey protein isolate (WPI) were prepared and weighed. The suspension was made by adding distilled water to the MD and WPI mixture followed by agitation with a rotor-stator homogenizer at a particular speed for 15 minutes. Subsequently, 4 grams of oleoresin were added to MD-WPI suspension. The mixture was homogenized at a particular speed for 10 minutes. Then, the mixture was poured into a glass pans to form a thin layer and dried using a vacuum oven at 50°C and 0.5 atm.

175

176 **2.5.** Analysis of Encapsulated Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin

Physicochemical analyses of encapsulated oleoresins were trapped oil content,
antioxidant activity, yield, water content, surface oil, water activity, and colour
intensity.

180

181 **2.5.1.** Trapped Oil Content

Trapped oil content was estimated as outlined by Asyhari (2013) and Nugraheni et al.
(2015). One gram of encapsulated sample was placed in an Erlenmeyer, dissolved in
20 ml of ethanol 96% and covered with aluminium foil. The sample was extracted by

an ultrasonicator instrument at 50°C and 45 kHz frequency for 45 minutes. Filtration was carried out to separate the insoluble polymer fragments. The filtrate was transferred into an empty porcelain cup of known weight and then put in an oven at 45°C for 24 hours. The measurement results were recorded as the final weight of the cup. The total trapped oil yield was calculated by using the following formula:

190
$$Total \, Oil \, (\%) = \frac{Final \, Weight \, of \, Cup(g) - Empty \, Cup \, Weight(g)}{Weight \, of \, Sample \, (1 \, g)} x100\%$$

191
$$Trapped Oil (\%) = Total Oil (\%) - Surface Oil (\%)$$

192

193 **2.5.2.** Antioxidant Activity Analysis

194 Approximately 0.5 gram of encapsulated sample was weighed, then dissolved in 5 ml of ethanol 96% and left for 2 hours. After that, 0.1 ml of liquid was taken and dissolved 195 196 with 3.9 ml of DPPH solution in a test tube and homogenized. The test tube with 197 sample was incubated into a dark room at 25°C for 30 minutes. After that, the sample 198 absorbance was measured with a spectrophotometer at λ = 517 nm. The blank sample 199 (control) was made by replacing the sample with 0.1 ml of ethanol (Hussein et al., 2017 200 and Amin et al., 2013). Antioxidant activity was calculated as % inhibition using the 201 formula below:

202 Antioxidant activity (%) =
$$\left[\frac{absorbance of control - absorbance of sample}{absorbance of control}\right] x100\%$$

203

204 **2.5.3.** Yield Calculation

The yield was calculated based on the weight of the encapsulated powder produced from vacuum drying compared to the total solids of the emulsion material 207 (encapsulating material and oleoresin) (Yuniarti et al., 2013). The yield content (dry

208 basis) was determined by the following formula:

209
$$\%$$
 Yield = $\frac{weight of microcapsule powder(g)}{weight of emulsion solids (g)} x 100\%$

210

211 **2.5.4.** Moisture Analysis

212 Moisture content of the sample was tested by using a moisture analyser (Lindani, 213 2016). Half until 1 gram of sample was placed into the tool. The instrument will heat 214 the sample until the value of the water content is shown constantly (approximately 215 for 10 minutes).

216

217 **2.5.5.** Surface Oil Analysis

One gram of encapsulated sample was put into a centrifuge tube and 5 ml of ethanol 96% was added. The mixture was centrifuged at 1700 rpm for 15 minutes. After that, the sample was filtered through filter paper and washed with 7.5 mL of ethanol twice. The filtrate was transferred to a cup of known weight, then dried in an oven for 24 hours. After that, the sample was put in a desiccator for 15 minutes and weighed as the final weight (Hussein at al., 2017 and Yazicioglu et al., 2015). The amount of surface oil was calculated by using the formula below:

225
$$Surface Oil (\%) = \frac{Cup \text{ final weight (g)} - Empty cup weight (g)}{Sample weight (1 g)} x100\%$$

226

227 **2.5.6.** Water Activity (a_w) Analysis

228 Water activity was measured by using an a_w meter (AquaLab, 2016). First, a 229 homogenized sample was put into a clean and dry container cup, completely covering the bottom of the cup. The container was filled with samples until half a cup. The sample was measured with a_w meter for 15 minutes and the result appeared on display (reader).

233

234 **2.5.7.** Colour Measurement

235 Colour testing on encapsulate was carried out using Chroma meter Minolta CR400. 236 After instrument calibration, the encapsulated sample was placed in a transparent 237 plastic and a Chroma meter beam was released (Nguyen et al., 2018). The 238 measurement showed the values of L*, a* and b*. The value of L* (lightness) of 100 239 indicates a light coloured sample. The value of a* indicates the tendency of red (+) and 240 green (-). The b* value indicates yellow (+) and blue (-).

241

242 **3. Results and Discussion**

243 **3.1.** Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin

Nutmeg seed oleoresin was processed by extraction using ethanol to dissolve the polar substances in nutmeg powder. The ethanol solvent was chosen because of its polarity by the presence of the -OH group to dissolve polar molecules. Oleoresin is a polar substance, while nutmeg butter is a non-polar substance. In addition, ethanol has a low boiling point at 78.4°C and 1 atm to easily remove the solvent from the extract (Susanti et al., 2012 and Yulianti, 2010). The yield of oleoresin produced in this research was 30.4%.

251

252 **3.2.** Encapsulation of Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin

The encapsulation process aimes to protect the active substance from oxidation by air and light, thereby increasing the shelf life of the product. The emulsification is applied at various levels of agitation speed by using a homogenizer. Homogenizer could reduce the oil globules' size and stabilize the emulsion by preventing coalescent. The agitation speed during homogenization could affect the droplet size, where increasing the agitation speed would result in a smaller emulsion droplet size.

259

260 In this study, a thin layer drying technique with a vacuum dryer was used. Principally, 261 this technique will create a thin layer on the glass pan surface, followed by drying in 262 the oven. The thickness of the layer should be uniform by assuming a uniform 263 temperature distribution (Onwude et al., 2016). This technique is very efficient with low temperature (<60°C) application, so it will not damage the heat-sensitive 264 265 substances. In addition, the utilization of a vacuum oven at a low-pressure setting (0.5 266 atm) would evaporate the water below the normal boiling point. It could preserve the 267 texture and appearance of the material, minimize the loss of active substances such 268 as aroma and volatile compounds, reduce nutrition degradation, reduce browning due 269 to oxidation, and save energy (Prasetyaningrum, 2010).

270

The measurement results of trapped oil, antioxidant activity, yield, moisture content, surface oil, and water activity could be seen in Table 2. An analysis of variance (ANOVA) was performed to evaluate the significance of each factor. ANOVA results showed that the polynomial quadratic model was a suitable model to represent the experimental data at a 95% confidence level. The correlation coefficient from ANOVA statistical analysis is shown in Table 3. Based on the statistical analysis, agitation speed (RPM), MD, and WPI addition had a significant effect on trapped oil, antioxidants, and
yield (p < 0.05). Coefficient Regression Tables to predict results through polynomial
equations are presented in Table 4.

280

3.3. Trapped Oil of Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin Encapsulate

Trapped oil content is a parameter representing how much oleoresin (core material) is encapsulated by the coating material. By encapsulation, the core material or active substances could be protected from degradation reactions, aroma and volatile compound loss, thus maintaining flavour stability during storage (Kanakdande et al., 2007). The result of trapped oil measurement is presented in the Experimental Response Table (Table 2) and illustrated as a three-dimensional graph (Figure 1).

288

289 Based on Figure 1 and Table 3, all three variables (RPM, MD, and WPI) had a significant 290 effect on trapped oil content. From the graphs (Figure 1), there is a rising ridge chart 291 where the critical point or stationary point is not in the experimental area but occupies 292 the maximum point. Formula with the ratio of oleoresin and coating 1:1 had the 293 highest trapped oil yield of 8.1-13.7%, followed by the formula with the ratio of 1:2 294 (4.5-10.9%) and 1:3 (6.1-8.6%), respectively. The higher trapped oil showed the 295 effectiveness of encapsulation in maintaining oleoresin of nutmeg. Maltodextrin as a 296 coating material plays an important role in the effectiveness of oil trapping. If the 297 coating material amount is insufficient to wrap core materials, there will be a lot of 298 core material on the outer surface of the encapsulate (Jayanudin et al., 2017). WPI 299 contains up to 90% of free proteins which makes those proteins easily dissolve in the 300 emulsion system and interact with oil (oleoresin). Thus, the more WPI added, the more 301 stable the emulsion system will be. In addition, whey protein could function as a 302 suitable encapsulating agent when used in isolate form (Young et al., 1993 and 303 Nasrullah, 2010). In addition, emulsion stability is affected by the higher agitation 304 speed, which reduces the size of the oil globule (oleoresin) where oil globules can be 305 completely covered by the coating material. The homogenization process can also 306 reduce the tendency of fat globules to clump or coalescence due to smaller droplet 307 sizes (Tetra Pak, 2015).

308

309 **3.4.** Surface Oil of Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin Encapsulate

As one of the encapsulation process parameters, surface oil indicates the amount of oil present on the surface and not encapsulated well. This parameter could analyse how much oleoresin can be encapsulated completely (Nasrullah, 2010). Nonencapsulated oleoresin or free oleoresin on the surface will be easily damaged due to evaporation and oxidation (Shaidi & Han, 1993 and Nasrullah, 2010).

315

316 Figure 2 shows a saddle system graph where the elliptical contour extends significantly 317 along with one of its main axes. The amount of coating material influenced the surface 318 oil of the encapsulate. Formula with a core and coating material ratios of 1:1 showed 319 the highest surface oil yield (5-9%), followed by the ratio of 1:2 (2.3-7.7%) and 1:3 (2.9-320 4.2%), respectively. As presented in Table 2, it can be seen that increasing the amount 321 of coating material will reduce the amount of surface oil. It might be due to the thicker 322 encapsulated wall formed, so the amount of oleoresin that comes out will be less 323 (Jayanudin et al., 2017). The lower surface oil was connected to the higher trapped oil, 324 which showed the effectiveness of encapsulation process.

326 Table 3 indicates that MD has a substantial effect on the surface oil amount. The low 327 amount of maltodextrin to core material will result in insufficient coating material to 328 cover the whole surface of the oleoresin droplets to strengthen the capsule wall 329 (Laohasongkrama et al., 2011). The addition of maltodextrin which is not balanced 330 with whey protein will increase the level of surface oil. Maltodextrin is a lipophobic 331 compound, so it cannot bind to the oil molecule. So, it is not enough to emulsify the 332 oil to be encapsulated, and result in a lot of oil that is not encapsulated. Therefore, 333 the addition of WPI is used in the formula since WPI is considered a suitable emulsifier 334 in the food system. WPI is primarily absorbed at the interface of oil-in-water (o/w) 335 droplets, where it forms a layer that protects the droplets from coalescent (McCrae et 336 al., 1999; Assagaf et al., 2013).

337

338 **3.5.** Antioxidant Activity of Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin Encapsulate

An antioxidant is a substance that inhibits or prevents oxidation in the substrate. Free radicals are unstable and highly reactive molecules with one or more unpaired electrons present in their outermost orbitals. To be more stable, free radicals tend to react with the other molecules to obtain electron pairs (Karim et al., 2015).

343

In this research, 1,1-diphenyl2-picrylhydrazyl (DPPH) became the free radical that reacted with active substances from the encapsulated oleoresin. Flavonoids in nutmeg oleoresin will donate hydrogen radicals (H+) or oxidized by the DPPH and result in more stability and low reactivity of free radicals (Amic et al., 2003 and Karim et al., 2015). A study by Sharma et al. (2015) reported that total flavonoids in onions would decrease after heating at a high temperature. It indicates that some flavonoids might
be destroyed at high-temperature treatment. Nutmeg oleoresin contains
phytochemical compounds with antioxidant activity such as myristicin, isoeugenol,
and eugenol compounds (Ginting et al., 2017).

353

354 Based on DPPH in vitro testing, the antioxidant activity of fresh nutmeg oleoresin was 355 94.23%, while the antioxidant activity of nutmeg oleoresin encapsulate was ranged 356 from 13.31% to 91.71% (see Table 2). The lowest antioxidant activity value was 357 obtained from treatment 5 with an agitation speed of 4000 rpm, 6 grams of 358 maltodextrin, and 2 grams of whey protein isolate. The highest antioxidant activity 359 values were obtained from treatment 17 with an agitation speed of 3500 rpm, 4 grams 360 of maltodextrin and 4 grams of whey protein isolate. Application of this process 361 condition could maintain the antioxidant activity of nutmeg seed oleoresin. Based on 362 research by Ginting et al. (2017) about the antioxidant activity of n-hexane extract of 363 nutmeg plants, the antioxidant activity of nutmeg seeds was in the range of 60.86% 364 and 87.85%.

365

366 From the results in Table 2, there was an interaction between surface oil and 367 antioxidants, where in encapsulates with low surface oil will have low antioxidants and 368 vice versa. In other words, the encapsulate with a higher amount of surface oil will be 369 more susceptible to damage (oxidation) than an encapsulate that have low surface oil 370 or moderate antioxidant activity.

371

372 In Figure 3., there are three graphs illustrating a maximum surface visual where the 373 critical point is in the experimental region and the stationary point is at the maximum 374 point. The antioxidant activity values of encapsulate at three different core and 375 coating material ratios (1:1, 1:2, 1:3) were 53.79-91.33%, 13.31-91.71%, and 17.25-376 61.07%, respectively. The high amount of maltodextrin as encapsulating material will 377 produce low antioxidant activity if the ratio of MD:WPI is not proportional. This is due 378 to the wall being formed is getting thicker. Maltodextrin has good stability against oil 379 oxidation but has low oil retention, thus it is usually combined with an emulsifier 380 (Kenyon, 1995 in Nasrullah, 2010). If the composition of maltodextrin is high and not 381 balanced with whey protein, some oleoresin compounds might be damage during 382 drying process because their presence on the surface. At treatment 17 (91.71%) (ratio 383 of core material: coating = 1:2) antioxidants produced at a higher rate than treatment 384 12 (91.33%) (ratio of core material: coating = 1:1), this can be caused by the number 385 of solids that are too high which results in puffing (swelling) and cracking of particles 386 so that the encapsulate ruptures because of high temperatures, and the core material 387 comes out of the capsule (Li et al., 2015).

388

389 3.6. Yield of Nutmeg Oleoresin Encapsulate

The yield (in percentage) of encapsulation could indicate how optimal the powder produced from each formula and how much loss in each formula is. Based on Table 2, the yield value of the encapsulate is not too high and ranges from 51.25% to 72.92%. It might be due to many product losses during the processing. Based on Table 3, the MD and WPI variables have a significant effect on the encapsulate yield (p<0.05). The addition of maltodextrin and whey protein isolate as a coating material has a higher
total solid, thus giving a higher yield.

397

Figure 4 shows the formation of a saddle system graph where the elliptical contour extends significantly along one of its main axes and the rising ridge graph where the critical point or stationary point is not in the experimental area and the stationary point is at the maximum point. Formula with the ratio of core and coating material 1:1 has the lowest yield of encapsulate (51.25-68.75%), followed by the ration of 1:2 (60.00-72.92%), and 1:3 (63.46-71.88%), respectively.

404

405 **3.7.** Moisture Content of Nutmeg Oleoresin Encapsulate

406 Moisture content is one of the encapsulate quality aspects. The higher moisture 407 content in encapsulates will trigger the oxidation and hydrolysis reaction resulting in 408 quality degradation and biological damage (Bakry et al., 2015). According to SNI 01-409 3709-1995, the maximum moisture content of spice powder is 12% (National 410 Standardization Agency 1995). The moisture content of encapsulated powder in this 411 study was in the range of 7.39% to 9.30%, so it met the SNI water content specification. 412 Based on ANOVA results in Table 3, the WPI variable had a significant effect on water 413 content (p < 0.05). Whey protein isolate is very hygroscopic or sensitive to moisture 414 and stickiness (Hogan & Callaghan, 2013). Hence, the addition of whey protein isolate 415 could increase the water content of the encapsulated powder.

416

Figure 5 shows the rising ridge graph where the critical point or stationary point is notin the experimental region and the stationary point is at the maximum point. The

419 addition of coating material affected on the water content of encapsulates powder. 420 The lowest water content was obtained from formula with the ratio of core and 421 coating material 1:1, while the highest water content was from the formula with ratio 422 of 1:3. The addition of whey protein isolate has a significant effect in increasing the 423 water content of the encapsulated powder due to the hygroscopic properties of whey 424 protein. Based on Prasetyo in Ramadhani (2006), too much addition of coating 425 material as a filler will cause clotting and case hardening. As a result, the moisture 426 inside the droplet cannot come out and contact with the drying air. The droplet 427 surface is covered by solid substances and will minimize the water-hot air contact 428 area. Therefore, adding coating material could increase the water content.

429

430 **3.8.** Water Activity of Nutmeg Oleoresin Encapsulate

431 Water activity (a_w) indicates the amount of free water used by microorganisms to 432 grow. Therefore, this parameter is important to define the microbiological risk in 433 encapsulate powder and the stability during storage. The water activity values of 434 oleoresin encapsulate in this study were in the range 0.54 - 0.58. Tapia et al. (2020) 435 stated that the food product must have water activity below 0.6, to prevent the mold 436 growth. Based on ANOVA analysis in Table 3, no variable affect water activity in the 437 powder. It might be due to the vacuum oven ability to produce water vapor during off 438 condition. In addition, whey protein isolate properties is hygroscopic, so that the 439 water vapor in the vacuum oven will be easily absorbed and this will increase the water 440 activity.

441

Figure 6 shows the graphs that form various models. The interaction graph of agitation speed with maltodextrin shows the falling ridge graph where the critical point or stationary point is not in the experimental area and the stationary point is at the minimum point. The interaction graph of mixing speed with whey protein shows the saddle graph system where elliptical contours extend significantly along one of its main axes (Taylor & Francis, 2008).

448

449 **3.9.** Colour Analysis of Nutmeg Oleoresin Encapsulate

450 The colour of the encapsulated powder indicated the physical properties based on the 451 constituent materials. Principally, the Chroma meter works through the interaction of 452 energy diffuse light and atoms or molecules of an object being analyzed. The light 453 source of a xenon lamp was beamed onto the sample surface and was reflected back 454 to the spectral sensor. Six high-sensitivity silicon photocells with a dual-back beam 455 system measured the reflected light of the sample (Candra et al., 2014). The L* 456 indicator was indicated by a value of 0 (black/dark) to 100 (light/white). The reflected 457 light of the L* indicator showed the achromatic colors of white, gray and black. The a* 458 indicator showed a chromatic color of red if positive and green if negative. A positive 459 b* indicator indicated a yellow chromatic colur and a negative b* value indicated a 460 blue colour intensity.

461

Based on Table 5, the difference in agitation speed showed no effect on colour of
encapsulated powder, while the addition of a coating material increased the values of
L and b*, and decreased the value of a*. The addition of coating material could reduce
the density of brown colour of oleoresin. However, differences in coating formulations

did not produce significant differences in values of L, a* and b*. The brown colour of
encapsulated powder decreased as amount of the coating material increased.

468

469 **3.10.** Optimization of Process Parameter Combinations

470 The optimum point was predicted by Response Surface Methodology from the 471 combination of optimal conditions and interactions between independent variables 472 (Ratnawati et al., 2018). In the optimization step, the independent variables for 473 optimization were trapped oil, antioxidant activity, and yield. Those variables 474 (parameters) could reflect the effectiveness and efficiency of encapsulation. The 475 Statistica 6.0 RSM program generated five optimum formula solutions as presented in 476 Table 6. Process conditions with an agitation speed of 3500 rpm, 4 grams of 477 maltodextrin and 4 grams of whey protein isolate would produce an encapsulate 478 powder with characteristics for an optimization target of 79.39%. Then, the optimum 479 formula could be achieved by using the polynomial quadratic models shown in Table 480 4.

481

482 **4. Conclusion**

The nutmeg oleoresin encapsulation process was optimized by the Response Surface Methodology (desirability value of 0.794) and resulted in following setting variable: 3500 rpm of agitation speed, 4 grams of maltodextrin, and 4 grams of whey protein isolate addition. It means that those setting variables could produce nutmeg oleoresin encapsulates as desired (optimum) is 79.39%. The optimum formula had a trapped oil content of 10.23%, antioxidant activity of 91.50%, yield of 66.79%, water activity of 0.551, moisture content 8.63%, and colour properties L=65.47, a*= 7.90, and

- 490 b*=19.570. As a suggestion, further research on the stability and safety (in vivo
- 491 testing) of nutmeg oleoresin encapsulate needs to be done.
- 492

493 Funding

- 494 This research was fully funded by the Ministry of Research and Higher Education,
- 495 number: 010/L6/AK/SP2H.1/RESEARCH/2019.
- 496

497 Acknowledgments

- 498 The authors would like to thank all those who have contributed to assist in this
- 499 research, especially colleagues and students in the research group of Food Processing
- 500 and Engineering, Soegijapranata Catholic University.
- 501

502 **Conflicts of Interest**

- 503 There are none to declare.
- 504

505 **Data Availability**

506 The data is not publicly available.

507 **References**

508 Amin, A., Wunas, J., & Anin, Y. M. (2013). Antioxidant Activity Test and Ethanol Extract 509 of Klika Faloak (Sterculia quadrifida R.Br) Using the DPPH Method. Jurnal Fitofarmaka 510 Indonesia, 2(2), 111–114. https://media.neliti.com/media/publications/259622-uji-511 aktivitas-antioksidan-ekstrak-etanol-5e322216.pdf 512 513 AquaLab. (2016). Water Activity Meter. Decagon Devices, Inc. Version: August 2, 2016. 514 https://www.meyer.ca/wp-content/uploads/2014/08/13484 AquaLab-Series-515 Four Web.pdf 516 517 Assagaf, Muhammad, Pudji Hastuti, Chusnul Hidayat, & Supriyadi. (2012). Comparison of Extraction Method of Nutmeg Seed from South Maluku using Maceration and 518 519 Distillation. Agritech, Vol 32 (3), 240-248. https://journal.ugm.ac.id/agritech/ 520 article/view/9608 521 522 Assagaf, M., Hastuti, P., Yuliani, S., & Supriyadi. (2013). Characteristics of 523 Microencapsulated Nutmeg Oleoresin: Determination of the Ratio of Whey Protein 524 Concentrate: Maltodextrin. Agritech. 525 http://library.binus.ac.id/eColls/eJournal/KaraketeristikOreleorisin Pala Yang 526 Dimikroenkapsulasi Penentuan Rasio Whey protein concertrate WPC Maltodekstrin 527 (MD).pdf 528 529 Asyhari, A. (2013). Formulation and Physical Evaluation of Microcapsules from 530 Soybean Extract (Glycine max L. Merr) by Solvent Evaporation Method. In Skripsi 531 Program Studi Hasanuddin Farmasi, Universitas Makassar. 532 https://doi.org/10.1017/CBO9781107415324.004 533 534 Bakry, Amr M; Shabbar Abbas, Barkat Ali, Hamid Majeed, Mohamed Y. Abouelwafa, 535 Ahmed Mousa, and Li Liang. (2015). Microencapsulation of Oils : A Comprehensive 536 Review of Benefits, Techniques, and Aplications. Comprehensive Reviews in Food 537 Science and Food Safety, 15. doi: 10.1111/1541-4337.12179. 538 539 Candra, F. N., Riyadi, P. H., & Wijayanti, I. (2014). Utilization of Karagenan (Euchema 540 cottoni) as Emulsifier to Stability of Nila (Oreochromis niloticus) Fish Meat Ball 541 Manufacturing by Cold Storage Temperature. Jurnal Pengolahan dan Bioteknologi 542 Hasil Perikanan, 3(1), 167-176. https://media.neliti.com/media/publications/125912-543 ID-none.pdf 544 545 Fernandes, Regiane Victória de Barros; Soraia Vilela Borges, and Diego Alvarenga 546 Botrel. (2014). Gum Arabic/Starch/Maltodextrin/Inulin as Wall Materials on The 547 Microencapsulation Of Rosemary Essential Oil. Carbohydrate Polymers, 101, 524–532. 548 http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.carbpol.2013.09.083 549 550 Ginting, B., Mustanir, Helwati, H., Desiyana, L. S., Eralisa, & Mujahid, R. (2017). 551 Antioxidant Activity of N-Hexane Extract of Nutmeg Plants from South Aceh Province. 552 Jurnal Natural, 17(1), 39. https://doi.org/10.24815/jn.v17i1.6969

 Hogan, S.A., & D. J. O. Callaghan. (2013). Moisture Sorption and Stickiness Behaviour of Hydrolysed Whey Protein/Lactose Powders. Journal Dairy Sci. & Technol, 93, 505–521. DOI 10.1007/s13594-013-0129-2 Hussein, A. M. S., Kamil, M. M., Lotfy, S. N., Mahmoud, K. F., Mehaya, F. M., & Mohammad, A. A. (2017). Influence of Nano-encapsulation on Chemical Composition, Antioxidant Activity and Thermal Stability of Rosemary Essential Oil. American Journal of Food Technology, 12(3), 170–177. https://doi.org/10.3923/ajft.2017.170.177 Jafari, Seid Mahdi. (2017). An Overview of Nanoencapsulation Techniques and Their Classification. Journal Nanoencapsulation Technologies for the Food and Nutraceutical Industries. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809436-5.00001-X Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical Equations for Predicting Particle Size of Red Ginger Oleoresin Encapsulation. ALCHEMY Jurnal Penelitian Kimia, 14(2), 178. https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. ALCHEMY Jurnal Penelitian Kimia, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. Journal Carbohydrate Polymers, 67, 536–541. D0I: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdff%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lor'pez-Herna'ndez,	553	
 of Hydrolysed Whey Protein/Lactose Powders. <i>Journal Dairy Sci. & Technol</i>, 93, 505–521. DOI 10.1007/s13594-013-0129-2 Hussein, A. M. S., Kamil, M. M., Lotfy, S. N., Mahmoud, K. F., Mehaya, F. M., & Mohammad, A. A. (2017). Influence of Nano-encapsulation on Chemical Composition, Antioxidant Activity and Thermal Stability of Rosemary Essential Oil. <i>American Journal of Food Technology</i>, <i>12</i>(3), 170–177. https://doi.org/10.3923/ajft.2017.170.177 Jafari, Seid Mahdi. (2017). An Overview of Nanoencapsulation Techniques and Their Classification. <i>Journal Nanoencapsulation Technologies for the Food and Nutraceutical Industries</i>. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809436-5.00001-X Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical Equations for Predicting Particle Size of Red Ginger Oleoresin Encapsulation. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal Penelitian Kimia</i>, <i>14</i>(2), 178. https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal Penelitian Kimia</i>, <i>13</i>(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. <i>Journal Carbohydrate Polymers</i>, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/J.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, <i>4</i>(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/Distream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne-pdf.pdf%3Fseque	554	Hogan, S.A., & D. J. O. Callaghan. (2013). Moisture Sorption and Stickiness Behaviour
 521. DOI 10.1007/s13594-013-0129-2 Hussein, A. M. S., Kamil, M. M., Lotfy, S. N., Mahmoud, K. F., Mehaya, F. M., & Mohammad, A. A. (2017). Influence of Nano-encapsulation on Chemical Composition, Antioxidant Activity and Thermal Stability of Rosemary Essential Oil. <i>American Journal</i> <i>of Food Technology</i>, <i>12</i>(3), 170–177. https://doi.org/10.3923/ajft.2017.170.177 Jafari, Seid Mahdi. (2017). An Overview of Nanoencapsulation Techniques and Their Classification. <i>Journal Nanoencapsulation Technologies for the Food and Nutraceutical</i> <i>Industries</i>. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809436-5.00001-X Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical Equations for Predicting Particle Size of Red Ginger Oleoresin Encapsulation. <i>ALCHEMY</i> <i>Jurnal Penelitian Kimia</i>, <i>14</i>(2), 178. https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal</i> <i>Penelitian Kimia</i>, <i>13</i>(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. <i>Journal Carbohydrate Polymers</i>, <i>67</i>, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia</i> <i>hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, <i>4</i>(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin</i> <i>Incorported Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne	555	of Hydrolysed Whey Protein/Lactose Powders. Journal Dairy Sci. & Technol, 93, 505–
 Hussein, A. M. S., Kamil, M. M., Lotfy, S. N., Mahmoud, K. F., Mehaya, F. M., & Mohammad, A. A. (2017). Influence of Nano-encapsulation on Chemical Composition, Antioxidant Activity and Thermal Stability of Rosemary Essential Oil. <i>American Journal</i> <i>of Food Technology</i>, <i>12</i>(3), 170–177. https://doi.org/10.3923/ajft.2017.170.177 Jafari, Seid Mahdi. (2017). An Overview of Nanoencapsulation Techniques and Their Classification. <i>Journal Nanoencapsulation Technologies for the Food and Nutraceutical</i> <i>Industries</i>. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809436-5.00001-X Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical Equations for Predicting Particle Size of Red Ginger Oleoresin Encapsulation. <i>ALCHEMY</i> <i>Jurnal Penelitian Kimia</i>, <i>14</i>(2), 178. https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal</i> <i>Penelitian Kimia</i>, <i>13</i>(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. <i>Journal Carbohydrate Polymers</i>, <i>67</i>, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia</i> <i>hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, <i>4</i>(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin</i> <i>Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123455789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo`sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes	556	521. DOI 10.1007/s13594-013-0129-2
 Hussein, A. M. S., Kamil, M. M., Lotfy, S. N., Mahmoud, K. F., Mehaya, F. M., & Mohammad, A. A. (2017). Influence of Nano-encapsulation on Chemical Composition, Antioxidant Activity and Thermal Stability of Rosemary Essential Oil. <i>American Journal</i> <i>of Food Technology</i>, <i>12</i>(3), 170–177. https://doi.org/10.3923/ajft.2017.170.177 Jafari, Seid Mahdi. (2017). An Overview of Nanoencapsulation Techniques and Their Classification. <i>Journal Nanoencapsulation Technologies for the Food and Nutraceutical</i> <i>Industries</i>. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809436-5.00001-X Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical Equations for Predicting Particle Size of Red Ginger Oleoresin Encapsulation. <i>ALCHEMY</i> <i>Jurnal Penelitian Kimia</i>, <i>14</i>(2), 178. https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal</i> <i>Penelitian Kimia</i>, <i>13</i>(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. <i>Journal Carbohydrate Polymers</i>, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia</i> <i>hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, <i>4</i>(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin</i> <i>Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q	557	
 Mohammad, A. A. (2017). Influence of Nano-encapsulation on Chemical Composition, Antioxidant Activity and Thermal Stability of Rosemary Essential Oil. <i>American Journal</i> of Food Technology, 12(3), 170–177. https://doi.org/10.3923/ajft.2017.170.177 Jafari, Seid Mahdi. (2017). An Overview of Nanoencapsulation Techniques and Their Classification. <i>Journal Nanoencapsulation Technologies for the Food and Nutraceutical</i> <i>Industries</i>. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809436-5.00001-X Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical Equations for Predicting Particle Size of Red Ginger Oleoresin Encapsulation. <i>ALCHEMY</i> <i>Jurnal Penelitian Kimia</i>, 14(2), 178. https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal</i> <i>Penelitian Kimia</i>, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. <i>Journal Carbohydrate Polymers</i>, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia</i> <i>hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin</i> <i>Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqNJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo'sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo'pez-Herna'ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). I	558	Hussein, A. M. S., Kamil, M. M., Lotfy, S. N., Mahmoud, K. F., Mehava, F. M., &
 Antioxidant Activity and Thermal Stability of Rosemary Essential Oil. American Journal of Food Technology, 12(3), 170–177. https://doi.org/10.3923/ajft.2017.170.177 Jafari, Seid Mahdi. (2017). An Overview of Nanoencapsulation Techniques and Their Classification. Journal Nanoencapsulation Technologies for the Food and Nutraceutical Industries. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809436-5.00001-X Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical Equations for Predicting Particle Size of Red Ginger Oleoresin Encapsulation. ALCHEMY Jurnal Penelitian Kimia, 14(2), 178. https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. ALCHEMY Jurnal Penelitian Kimia, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. Journal Carbohydrate Polymers, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (Euphorbia hirta L.). Jurnal Akademika Kimia, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlu/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo'sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo'pez-Herna'ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. Journal Drying Technology, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1	559	Mohammad, A. A. (2017). Influence of Nano-encapsulation on Chemical Composition.
 of Food Technology, 12(3), 170–177. https://doi.org/10.3923/ajft.2017.170.177 Jafari, Seid Mahdi. (2017). An Overview of Nanoencapsulation Techniques and Their Classification. Journal Nanoencapsulation Technologies for the Food and Nutraceutical Industries. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809436-5.00001-X Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical Equations for Predicting Particle Size of Red Ginger Oleoresin Encapsulation. <i>ALCHEMY</i> Jurnal Penelitian Kimia, 14(2), 178. https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal</i> <i>Penelitian Kimia</i>, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. Journal Carbohydrate Polymers, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (Euphorbia hirta L.). Jurnal Akademika Kimia, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmilui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26iAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo'sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo'pez-Herna'ndez, and Jorge A	560	Antioxidant Activity and Thermal Stability of Rosemary Essential Oil. American Journal
567 Series (2017). An Overview of Nanoencapsulation Techniques and Their 563 Jafari, Seid Mahdi. (2017). An Overview of Nanoencapsulation Technologies for the Food and Nutraceutical 564 Industries. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809436-5.00001-X 565 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical 566 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical 567 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical 568 Equations for Predicting Particle Size of Red Ginger Oleoresin Encapsulation. <i>ALCHEMY</i> 569 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of 570 Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal</i> 571 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of 572 Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal</i> 574 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin 575 Kanakkdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin 576 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia</i> 577 hirta L.). Jurnal Akademika Kimia, 4(2), 56–63.	561	of Food Technology, 12(3), 170–177, https://doi.org/10.3923/aift.2017.170.177
 Jafari, Seid Mahdi. (2017). An Overview of Nanoencapsulation Techniques and Their Classification. Journal Nanoencapsulation Technologies for the Food and Nutraceutical Industries. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809436-5.00001-X Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical Equations for Predicting Particle Size of Red Ginger Oleoresin Encapsulation. <i>ALCHEMY</i> <i>Jurnal Penelitian Kimia</i>, 14(2), 178. https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal</i> <i>Penelitian Kimia</i>, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. Journal Carbohydrate Polymers, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (Euphorbia <i>hirta</i> L.). Jurnal Akademika Kimia, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil.	562	oj + oou + cominio gy, 12(0), 170 177 milipol, / dono 6, 2010020, aj 12017 127 0127
 Glassification. Journal Nanoencapsulation Technologies for the Food and Nutraceutical Industries. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809436-5.00001-X Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical Equations for Predicting Particle Size of Red Ginger Oleoresin Encapsulation. <i>ALCHEMY</i> <i>Jurnal Penelitian Kimia</i>, 14(2), 178. https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal</i> <i>Penelitian Kimia</i>, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. <i>Journal Carbohydrate Polymers</i>, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia</i> <i>hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin</i> <i>Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo'sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo'pez-Herna'ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	563	Jafari, Seid Mahdi, (2017), An Overview of Nanoencapsulation Techniques and Their
 Industries. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809436-5.00001-X Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical Equations for Predicting Particle Size of Red Ginger Oleoresin Encapsulation. <i>ALCHEMY</i> <i>Jurnal</i> Penelitian Kimia, 14(2), 178. https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal</i> <i>Penelitian Kimia</i>, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. <i>Journal Carbohydrate Polymers</i>, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia</i> <i>hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin</i> <i>Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo'sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo'pez-Herna'ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	564	Classification, Journal Nanoencansulation Technologies for the Food and Nutraceutical
 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical Equations for Predicting Particle Size of Red Ginger Oleoresin Encapsulation. <i>ALCHEMY</i> <i>Jurnal</i> Penelitian Kimia, 14(2), 178. https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal</i> <i>Penelitian Kimia</i>, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. <i>Journal Carbohydrate Polymers</i>, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia</i> <i>hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin</i> <i>Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo'sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo'pez-Herna'ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	565	Industries https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809436-5.00001-X
 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical Equations for Predicting Particle Size of Red Ginger Oleoresin Encapsulation. <i>ALCHEMY</i> <i>Jurnal</i> Penelitian Kimia, 14(2), 178. https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal</i> <i>Penelitian Kimia</i>, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. <i>Journal Carbohydrate Polymers</i>, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia</i> <i>hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin</i> <i>Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo'sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo'pez-Herna'ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	566	madstrest mapst, / aditorg/ 10.1010/ 0570 0 12 005 100 5100001 /
 Jayanudin, J., Nordinado, P.J. Mararto, M., G. Ginger Oleoresin Encapsulation. <i>ALCHEMY</i> Jurnal Penelitian Kimia, 14(2), 178. https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal</i> <i>Penelitian Kimia</i>, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. Journal Carbohydrate Polymers, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia</i> <i>hirta</i> L.). Jurnal Akademika Kimia, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo'sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo'pez-Herna'ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. Journal Drying Technology, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	567	Javanudin J. Rochmadi R. Fahrurrozi M. & Wirawan S. K. (2018). Simple Empirical
 Jurnal Penelitian Kimia, 14(2), 178. https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal</i> <i>Penelitian Kimia</i>, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. <i>Journal Carbohydrate Polymers</i>, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:lDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo'sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo'pez-Herna'ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	568	Equations for Predicting Particle Size of Red Ginger Oleoresin Encansulation AICHEMY
 https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192 Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence of Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal</i> <i>Penelitian Kimia</i>, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. <i>Journal Carbohydrate Polymers</i>, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia</i> <i>hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin</i> <i>Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	569	lurnal Penelitian Kimia 14(2) 178
Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence ofCoating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. ALCHEMY JurnalPenelitian Kimia, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of CuminOleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrinand Modified Starch. Journal Carbohydrate Polymers, 67, 536–541.DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (Euphorbiahirta L.). Jurnal Akademika Kimia, 4(2), 56–63.Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon OleoresinIncorporated Yoghurt. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science andTechnologyTribhuvanUniversityNepal.http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.146.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne-pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=idLantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, OrestesLo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer AirTemperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. Journal Drying Technology, 29, 520–526,2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780Sandarding Kalava: Tida MahamaktudsaneeSaiwarun ChaiwanichsiriContarto Spray-Dryer AirTemperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. Journal Drying Technology, 29, 520–526,2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780	570	https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy 14.2.17076.178-192
Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The Influence ofCoating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. ALCHEMY JurnalPenelitian Kimia, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of CuminOleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrinand Modified Starch. Journal Carbohydrate Polymers, 67, 536–541.DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (Euphorbiahirta L.). Jurnal Akademika Kimia, 4(2), 56–63.Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon OleoresinIncorporated Yoghurt. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science andTechnologyTribhuvanUniversityNepal.http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.146.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne-pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=idLantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, OrestesLo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer AirTemperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. Journal Drying Technology, 29, 520–526,2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.5137802011201120112011201120122013201420142014201520152016201720182019<	571	mtps.// doi.org/ 10.20901/ doi.org/14.2.1/0/0.1/0 192
 Coating Material on Encapsulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin. <i>ALCHEMY Jurnal</i> <i>Penelitian Kimia</i>, <i>13</i>(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. <i>Journal Carbohydrate Polymers</i>, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia</i> <i>hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, <i>4</i>(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin</i> <i>Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	572	Javanudin J. Rochmadi R. Renaldi K. & Pangibutan P. (2017). The Influence of
 Penelitian Kimia, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. <i>Journal Carbohydrate Polymers</i>, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	573	Coating Material on Encansulation Efficiency of Red Ginger Oleoresin AI CHEMY Jurnal
 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. <i>Journal Carbohydrate Polymers</i>, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	574	Penelitian Kimia 13(2) https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406
 Kanakdande, Dattanand., Rajesh Bhosale, Rekha S. Singhal. (2007). Stability of Cumin Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. <i>Journal Carbohydrate Polymers</i>, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	575	r enentian kinna, 19(2). https://aonorg/10.20901/aonerny.1912.9100
 Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic, Maltodextrin and Modified Starch. <i>Journal Carbohydrate Polymers</i>, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne-pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	576	Kanakdande Dattanand Rajesh Bhosale Rekha S Singhal (2007) Stability of Cumin
 and Modified Starch. Journal Carbohydrate Polymers, 67, 536–541. DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (Euphorbia hirta L.). Jurnal Akademika Kimia, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. Journal Drying Technology, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	577	Oleoresin Microencapsulated in Different Combination of Gum Arabic. Maltodextrin
 DOI: 10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, <i>4</i>(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne-pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	578	and Modified Starch Journal Carbohydrate Polymers 67 536–541
 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, <i>4</i>(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne-pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	579	DOI: 10.1016/i.carbpol.2006.06.023
 Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (<i>Euphorbia</i> <i>hirta</i> L.). <i>Jurnal Akademika Kimia</i>, <i>4</i>(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). <i>Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin</i> <i>Incorporated Yoghurt</i>. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	580	
 hirta L.). Jurnal Akademika Kimia, 4(2), 56–63. Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. Journal Drying Technology, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 	581	Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity Test of Patikan Kebo (Euphorbia
 Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. Journal Drying Technology, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 Laohasongkrama, Kalaya: Tida Mahamaktudsanee, Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri, (2011). 	582	hirta L.). Jurnal Akademika Kimia. 4(2), 56–63.
 Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresin Incorporated Yoghurt. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. Journal Drying Technology, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 Laohasongkrama, Kalaya: Tida Mahamaktudsanee, Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri (2011). 	583	
 Incorporated Yoghurt. Department of Food Technology. Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. Journal Drying Technology, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 Laohasongkrama Kalaya: Tida Mahamaktudsanee Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri (2011) 	584	Khadka, Gyanu. (2018). Preparation and Shelf Life Study of Cinnamon Oleoresia
TechnologyTribhuvanUniversityNepal.586TechnologyTribhuvanUniversityNepal.587http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.145886.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne-589pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id590591Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes592Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air593Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. Journal Drying Technology, 29, 520–526,594Laohasongkrama_Kalava: Tida Mahamaktudsanee_Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri595Laohasongkrama_Kalava: Tida Mahamaktudsanee_Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri	585	Incorporated Yoghurt, Department of Food Technology, Institute of Science and
 http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyFeYhnqMJ:202.45.14 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 Laohasongkrama, Kalaya: Tida Mahamaktudsanee, Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri, (2011). 	586	Technology Tribhuyan University Nepal
 6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne- pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 Laohasongkrama Kalaya: Tida Mahamaktudsanee Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri (2011) 	587	http://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?g=cache:IDVyEeYhngMI:202.45.14
 pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk≷=id Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 Laohasongkrama Kalaya: Tida Mahamaktudsanee Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri (2011). 	588	6.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/123456789/89/CD-ma-halne-
 Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 Laohasongkrama Kalaya: Tida Mahamaktudsanee Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri (2011). 	589	ndf ndf%3Esequence%3D1%26isAllowed%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=han&ct=clnk≷=id
 Lantigua, Madai-Bringas., Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina, Gary A. Reineccius, Orestes Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 Laohasongkrama Kalaya: Tida Mahamaktudsanee Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri (2011). 	590	panparison sequences so strozols, now eaviers y raca barn sanade ennagi ha
 Lo´pez-Herna´ndez, and Jorge A. Pino. (2011). Influence of Spray-Dryer Air Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 Laohasongkrama Kalaya: Tida Mahamaktudsanee Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri (2011). 	591	Lantigua Madai-Bringas Idalmis Expo´sito-Molina Gary A Reineccius Orestes
 Temperatures on Encapsulated Mandarin Oil. <i>Journal Drying Technology</i>, 29, 520–526, 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 Laohasongkrama, Kalava: Tida Mahamaktudsanee, Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri (2011). 	592	Longez-Hernandez and lorge A Pino (2011) Influence of Spray-Driver Air
 2011. ISSN: 1532-2300. DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780 595 596 Laohasongkrama Kalava: Tida Mahamaktudsanee Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri (2011) 	593	Temperatures on Encansulated Mandarin Oil Journal Drving Technology 29 520–526
595 596 Laohasongkrama Kalava: Tida Mahamaktudsanee Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri (2011)	594	2011 ISSNI: 1532-2300 DOI: 10.1080/07373937.2010.513780
596 Laohasongkrama Kalava: Tida Mahamaktudsanee Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri (2011)	595	2011. 100.1. 1002 2000. 2011. 10.1000/070700072010.010700
	596	Laohasongkrama Kalava: Tida Mahamaktudsanee Saiwarun Chaiwanichsiri (2011)
597 Microencansulation of Macadamia Oil by Spray Drving Procedia Food Science 1 1660	597	Microencansulation of Macadamia Oil by Snray Drving Procedia Food Science 1 1660
508 = 1665	598	- 1665
$T_{10} = 1001$	599	1000.
J/0 – 1003 .	599	

600 Li, J., Shanbai Xiong, Fang Wang, Joe M. Regenstein, and Ru Liu. (2015). Optimization 601 of Microencapsulation of Fish Oil with Gum Arabic/Casein/Beta-Cyclodextrin Mixtures 602 by Spray Drying. Journal of Food Science, 80(7). https://doi.org/10.1111/1750-603 3841.12928 604 605 Lindani, A. (2016). Comparison of Moisture Analyzer Measurement Method with Oven 606 Method on Cookies Sandwich Biscuits Products at PT Mondelez Indonesia 607 Manufacturing. Institut Pertanian Bogor, Fakultas Teknologi Pertanian. 608 609 Lubis, A. (2010). Study on the Use of Response Surface Methods for Post-Harvest 610 Optimization. Sekolah Pascasarjana Institut Pertanian Bogor. 611 612 Nasrullah, F. (2010). The Effect of the Composition of the Encapsulating Material on 613 the Quality of Black Pepper Oleoresin Microcapsules (Piper ningrum L.). Faculty of 614 Agricultural Technology, Institut Pertanian Bogor. https://docplayer.info/50854863-615 Skripsi-pengaruh-komposisi-bahan-pengkapsul-terhadap-kualitas-mikrokapsul-616 oleoresin-lada-hitam-piper-nigrum-l-oleh-fahmi-nasrullah-f.html 617 618 Nguyen, T.-T., Phan-Thi, H., Pham-Hoang, B.-N., Ho, P.-T., Tran, T. T. T., & Waché, Y. 619 (2018). Encapsulation of Hibiscus sabdariffa L. anthocyanins as natural colours in 620 yeast. Food Research International, 107, 275–280. doi:10.1016/j.foodres.2018.02.044. 621 https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0963996918301376 622 623 Nugraheni, A., Yunarto, N., & Sulistyaningrum, N. (2015). Optimization of Java 624 Turmeric (Curcuma xanthorrhiza Roxb.) Extract Microencapsulation Formula using 625 Water Based Coating Material. Jurnal Kefarmasian Indonesia, 5(2), 98–105. 626 https://doi.org/10.22435/jki.v5i2.4404.98-105 627 628 Nurlaili, Fatchul Anam; Purnama Darmadji; Yudi Pranoto. (2014). Microencapsulation 629 of Pulp Ginger (Zingiber officinale var.Rubrum) Oleoresin with Maltodextrin Coating. 630 Jurnal Agritech, 34(1). https://jurnal.ugm.ac.id/agritech/article/download/9518/7093 631 632 Onwude, Daniel I., Norhashila Hashim, Rimfiel B. Janius, Nazmi Mat Nawi, dan Khalina 633 Abdan. (2016). Modeling the Thin-Layer Drying of Fruits and Vegetables: A Review. 634 Comprehensive Reviews in Food Science and Food Safety, 15. doi: 10.1111/1541-635 4337.12196 636 637 Prasetyaningrum, A. (2010). Design of Vacuum Drying Oven and Its Application as a 638 Drying Device Low Temperature. Riptek, 4(1), 45-53. at 639 https://www.academia.edu/27338855/rancang_bangun_oven_drying_vaccum_dan_ 640 aplikasinya sebagai alat pengering pada suhu rendah 641 642 Purnamayati, L., Dewi, E. N., & Kurniasih, R. A. (2016). Physical Characteristics of 643 Spirulina Phycocyanin Microcapsule using different concentration of coating 644 materials. Jurnal (1), 1-8. Teknologi Hasil Pertanian, 9 doi: 645 https://doi.org/10.20961/jthp.v9i2.12844.

646

- Ramadhani, Devi. (2016). "Effect of Maltodextrin and Egg White Concentration on
 Characteristics of Red Dragon Fruit Powder Drink (*Hylocereus polyrhizus*)." Skripsi *Fakultas Teknik Prodi Teknologi Pangan Universitas Pasundan Bandung*.
 https://jurnal.ugm.ac.id/agritech/article/download/12725/23987.
- Ratnawati, S.E., N Ekantari, R.W. Pradipta, dan B.L. Pramita. (2018). The Application of
 Response Surface Methodology (RSM) on the Optimization of Catfish Bone Calcium
 Extraction. Jurnal Perikanan Universitas Gajah Mada, 20(1).
- 655

Sharma, K., Eun Young Ko, Awraris D. Assefa, Soyoung Ha, Shivraj H. Nile, Eul Tai Lee,
and Se Won Park. (2015). Temperature-Dependent Studies on The Total Phenolics,
Flavonoids, Antioxidant Activities, and Sugar Content in Six Onion Varieties. *Journal of Food and Drug Analysis*, 23, 243-252. http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.jfda.2014.10.005

- Tapia, M. S., Alzamora, S. M., & Chirife, J. (2020). Effects of Water Activity (aw) on
 Microbial Stability as a Hurdle in Food Preservation. In G. V. Barbosa-Canovas, A. J.
 Fontana, Jr., S. J. Schmidt, & T. P. Labuza (Ed.), *Water Activity in Foods: Fundamentals*and Applications, Second Edition (pp. 323–355). John Wiley & Sons, Inc.
 doi:10.1002/9781118765982.ch14.
- 666 https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/abs/10.1002/9781118765982.ch14 667
- 668Taylor & Francis. (2008). Optimization in Food Engineering. European Journal of669Operational Research, 14. https://doi.org/10.1016/0377-2217(83)90276-x
- 670
- 671 Tetra Pak. (2015). Dairy Processing Handbook. Tetra Pak International. ISBN
 672 9789176111321.https://webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:YaSOOY
 673 LwZgMJ:https://dairyprocessinghandbook.tetrapak.com/chapter/homogenizers+&cd
 674 =9&hl=ban&ct=clnk&gl=id
- 675

Trendafilova, A., Chanev, C., & Todorova, M. (2010). Ultrasound-Assisted Extraction of
Alantolactone and Isoalantolactone From Inula Helenium Roots. *Pharmacognosy Magazine*, 6(23), 234. https://doi.org/10.4103/0973-1296.66942

- 679
 680 Yousefi, N., M Pazouki, F. A. Hesari, M Alizadeh. (2016). Statistical Evaluation of the
 681 Pertinent Parameters in Biosynthesis of Ag/MWf-CNT Composites Using Plackett682 Burman Design and response Surface Methodology. *Iran. Journal Che. Chem.Eng.*,
 683 35(2).
- 684

Yazicioglu, B., Serpil S., & Gulum S. (2015). Microencapsulation of Wheat Germ Oil. *Journal Food Science Technology*, 52(6), 3590-3597.
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/277602302_Microencapsulation_of_whe
at_germ_oil

Zilberboim, R., Kopelman, I. J., & Talmon, Y. (1986). Microencapsulation by a
Dehydrating Liquid: Retention of Paprika Oleoresin and Aromatic Esters. *Journal of Food* Science, 51(5), 1301–1306. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.13652621.1986.tb13110.x

7. Manuscript Accepted



Kristina Ananingsih <kristina@unika.ac.id>

Manuscript ID JFPP-06-22-1489.R1 - Journal of Food Processing and Preservation

JFPP Editorial office <onbehalfof@manuscriptcentral.com> Reply-To: JFPPWiley@wiley.com Wed, Aug 17, 2022 at 4:46 PM

To: kristina@unika.ac.id Cc: kristina@unika.ac.id, bernadeta@unika.ac.id, cynthiaandriani@unika.ac.id, bernardine.agatha99@gmail.com, birgittadevina@gmail.com

17-Aug-2022

Dear Dr. Ananingsih:

Your manuscript entitled "Optimization of Encapsulated Agents and Agitation Speed on the Physicochemical Characteristics of Vacuum Dried Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin (Myristica fragrans)" by Ananingsih, Victoria; Soedarini, Bernadeta; Andriani, Cynthia; Konstantia, Bernadine Adi; Santoso, Birgitta, has been successfully submitted online and is presently being given full consideration for publication in the Journal of Food Processing and Preservation.

Co-authors: Please contact the Editorial Office as soon as possible if you disagree with being listed as a co-author for this manuscript.

Thank you for your submission to Journal of Food Processing and Preservation .We wanted to share an update, as it may impact your submission. Journal of Food Processing and Preservation is in the process of transitioning to a fully open access title, published and hosted by Hindawi. After 16th August, revisions will no longer be accepted through ScholarOne, and papers still in peer review may not be able to complete the review process in ScholarOne. If your paper is unable to continue in ScholarOne, we will contact you with more information, and encourage you to submit your revised article to Journal of Food Processing and Preservation via https://review.hindawi.com/submit?journal=jpp_where you will be asked to confirm your ability to pay the APC of \$2500.

CASRAI CRedit Taxonomy: authors' contribution(s) to the submitted manuscript are attributed as below. Submitting Authors may provide Author Contributions at original submission but MUST provide the information at revised submission. At revision submission, all authors should check the contributions carefully as if your manuscript is accepted, this information will be included in the published article:

Your manuscript ID is JFPP-06-22-1489.R1.

Please mention the above manuscript ID in all future correspondence or when calling the office for questions. If there are any changes in your street address or e-mail address, please log in to Manuscript Central at. https://mc.manuscriptcentral.com/jfpp and edit your user information as appropriate.

This journal offers a number of license options, information about this is available here: https://authorservices.wiley.com/author-resources/Journal-Authors/licensing/index.html, All co-authors are required to confirm that they have the necessary rights to grant in the submission, including in light of each co-author's funder policies. For example, if you or one of your co-authors received funding from a member of Coalition S, you may need to check which licenses you are able to sign.

You can also view the status of your manuscript at any time by checking your Author Center after logging in to https://mc.manuscriptcentral.com/jfpp.

RESPONSE TIME

Journal of Food Processing and Preservation receives a high volume of submissions annually, which may cause delays in making final decisions. If you have not received information within 12 weeks of submission, you may contact the editorial office at JFPPWiley@wiley.com.

Thank you for submitting your manuscript to the Journal of Food Processing and Preservation.

6. Author Dashboard



Decision Letter (JFPP-06-22-1489.R1)

From: Charles.brennan@rmit.edu.au

- **To:** kristina@unika.ac.id, bernadeta@unika.ac.id, cynthiaandriani@unika.ac.id, bernardine.agatha99@gmail.com, birgittadevina@gmail.com
- **cc:** kristina@unika.ac.id, bernadeta@unika.ac.id, cynthiaandriani@unika.ac.id, bernardine.agatha99@gmail.com, birgittadevina@gmail.com
- Subject: Journal of Food Processing and Preservation Decision on Manuscript ID JFPP-06-22-1489.R1

Body: 06-Sep-2022

Dear Dr. Ananingsih:

It is a pleasure to accept your manuscript entitled "Optimization of Encapsulated Agents and Agitation Speed on the Physicochemical Characteristics of Vacuum Dried Nutmeg Seed Oleoresin (Myristica fragrans)" in its current form for publication in the Journal of Food Processing and Preservation.

Your article cannot be published until the corresponding author has signed the appropriate license agreement. Within the next few days the corresponding author will receive an email from Wiley's Author Services system which will ask them to log in and will present them with the appropriate licence for completion.

This journal offers a number of license options, information about this is available here: https://authorservices.wiley.com/author-resources/Journal-Authors/licensing/index.html. All coauthors are required to confirm that they have the necessary rights to grant in the submission, including in light of each co-author's funder policies. For example, if you or one of your coauthors received funding from a member of Coalition S, you may need to check which licenses you are able to sign.

Thank you for your fine contribution. On behalf of the Editors of the Journal of Food Processing and Preservation, we look forward to your continued contributions to the Journal.

Sincerely,

Associate Editor Comments to Author Associate Editor: Rezek Jambrak, Anet Comments to Author: (There are no comments.)

Reviewer(s)' Comments to Author:

P.S. – You can help your research get the attention it deserves! Wiley Editing Services offers professional video abstract and infographic creation to help you promote your research at www.wileyauthors.com/eeo/promotion. And, check out Wiley's free Promotion Guide for best-practice recommendations for promoting your work at www.wileyauthors.com/eeo/guide.

This journal accepts artwork submissions for Cover Images. This is an optional service you can use to help increase article exposure and showcase your research. For more information, including artwork guidelines, pricing, and submission details, please visit the Journal Cover Image page at www.wileyauthors.com/eeo/covers.

Date Sent: 06-Sep-2022

\bowtie	Close	Wind	low
-----------	-------	------	-----

7. Paper Proofread



Kristina Ananingsih <kristina@unika.ac.id>

Corrections successfully submitted for JFPP_EV_JFPP17151, Optimization of encapsulated agents and stirring speed on the physicochemical characteristics of vacuum dried nutmeg seed oleoresin (Myristica fragrans.

Kristina Ananingsih <kristina@unika.ac.id> To: help@hindawi.com Sat, Oct 22, 2022 at 7:18 PM

Dear Christine,

My name, Victoria Kristina Ananingsih, the author of a manuscript entitled **Optimization of encapsulated agents** and stirring speed on the physicochemical characteristics of vacuum dried nutmeg seed oleoresin (Myristica fragrans. JFPP_EV_JFPP17151.

I forwarded the information from JFPP that I already submitted the proof of the manuscript.

Could I have your information, what should I do for the next step?

Thank you. Regards, Victoria Kristina Ananingsih

Form: Wiley Online Proofing <onlineproofing@eproofing.in> Date: Tue, Sep 20, 2022 at 9:02 PM [Quoted text hidden] [Quoted text hidden]

[Guoted text hidden]



Corrections successfully submitted for JFPP_EV_JFPP17151, Optimization of encapsulated agents and stirring speed on the physicochemical characteristics of vacuum dried nutmeg seed oleoresin (Myristica fragrans.

Wiley Online Proofing <onlineproofing@eproofing.in> Reply-To: eproofing@wiley.com To: kristina@unika.ac.id Cc: jjeniferdh@wiley.com Tue, Sep 20, 2022 at 9:02 PM

Corrections successfully submitted

Dear Victoria Kristina Ananingsih,

Thank you for reviewing the proof of the Journal Of Food Processing And Preservation article Optimization of encapsulated agents and stirring speed on the physicochemical characteristics of vacuum dried nutmeg seed oleoresin (Myristica fragrans.

View Article

This is a read-only version of your article with the corrections you have marked up.

If you encounter any problems or have questions please contact us at (jjeniferdh@wiley.com). For the quickest response include the journal name and your article ID (found in the subject line) in all correspondence.

Best regards, Journal Of Food Processing And Preservation

7. Copy Right Confirmation



Kristina Ananingsih <kristina@unika.ac.id>

jfpp 17151 Copyright

Jenifer Dhas, Jernisha - <jjeniferdh@wiley.com> To: "kristina@unika.ac.id" <kristina@unika.ac.id>

Mon, Oct 31, 2022 at 4:42 PM

Dear Author,

Kindly open the Author services and complete the copyright formalities at the earliest.

Thank you!

Best regards,

Jernisha

Jernisha

She/her/hers

Production Editor

WILEY

The contents of this email and any attachments are confidential and intended only for the person or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use, review, distribution, reproduction or any action taken in reliance upon this message is strictly prohibited. If you received this message in error, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete all copies of the email and any attachments. Click here for translations of this disclaimer.



jfpp 17151 Copyright

Kristina Ananingsih <kristina@unika.ac.id> To: "Jenifer Dhas, Jernisha -" <jjeniferdh@wiley.com> Thu, Nov 3, 2022 at 10:24 PM

Dear Jernisha Production Editor Wlley,

Thank you for your email. I already completed the copyright form. You may check it. Could I have your information about the next step for this publication.

Thank you.

Best regards, Victoria Kristina Ananingsih

[Quoted text hidden]

Victoria Kristina Ananingsih

Lecturer & Researcher Food Technology Department Faculty of Agricultural Technology Soegijapranata Catholic University Semarang-Indonesia www.unika.ac.id See the source image

Powered by unika.ac.id mail service

7. Published Paper



Kristina Ananingsih <kristina@unika.ac.id>

Manuscript Accepted - Updates Approved JFPP-06-22-1489.R1 [email ref: ENR-AW-1-e]

Arun Munuswamy <arun.munuswamy@hindawi.com> Reply-To: Arun Munuswamy <arun.munuswamy@hindawi.com> To: kristina@unika.ac.id

Fri, Oct 28, 2022 at 10:45 AM

Dear Dr. Ananingsih,

Thanks for your query.

Wiley has confirmed that your manuscript is in production.

Kindly note that, you will receive correspondence from Wiley in due course.

Please feel free to contact for further any query.

Best regards, Arun M

Arun Munuswamy Editorial Assistant



Hindawi.com | Twitter | Facebook | LinkedIn | YouTube [Ouoted text hidden]

ORIGINAL ARTICLE

Journal of Food Processing and Preservation

WILEY

Optimization of encapsulated agents and stirring speed on the physicochemical characteristics of vacuum dried nutmeg seed oleoresin (*Myristica fragrans*)

Victoria K. Ananingsih | Bernadeta Soedarini | Cynthia Andriani | Bernardine A. A. Konstantia | Birgitta D. Santoso

Food Technology Department, Faculty of Agricultural Technology, Soegijapranata Catholic University, Semarang, Indonesia

Correspondence

Victoria K. Ananingsih, Jl. Pawiyatan Luhur IV No. 1, Bendan Duwur, Gajahmungkur, Semarang 50234, Jawa Tengah, Indonesia. Email: kristina@unika.ac.id

Funding information

Ministry of Research and Higher Education, Grant/Award Number: 010/L6/ AK/SP2H.1/RESEARCH/2019

Abstract

Nutmeg seed oleoresin (Myristica fragrans Houtt) from nutmeg seed extraction contains active substances. However, oleoresins' active substances are commonly heat sensitive, so encapsulation is needed. Encapsulation is the process of wrapping particles containing active ingredients in a homogeneous or heterogeneous matrix that produces encapsulated powder. The objective of this study was to obtain the best combination of encapsulated agents' concentration (maltodextrin and whey protein isolate) and agitation speed on the physicochemical characteristics of nutmeg seed oleoresin encapsulated using a vacuum drying method. Encapsulation of nutmeg seed oleoresin was performed with comparative parameters, namely agitation speed (3000, 3500, 4000 rpm), maltodextrin (MD) concentrations (ratio of MD to nutmeg seed oleoresin = 2:4, 4:4, 6:4), and whey protein isolate (WPI) concentrations (ratio of WPI to nutmeg oleoresin = 6:4, 4:4, and 2:4). The physicochemical analysis consisted of trapped oil content, antioxidant activity, yields, water content, surface oil, water activity, and color testing. The physicochemical data were further analyzed by response surface methodology (RSM) to get an optimum formula. The best formula resulted from a process at an agitation speed of 3500 rpm and the addition of 4 g maltodextrin and 4 g WPI. That formula had a trapped oil content 10.23%, antioxidant activity 91.50%, yield 66.79%, water activity 0.55, moisture content 8.63, and color intensity L^* 65.47, a^* 7.90, and b^* 19.57. This formula could be applied to produce nutmeg seed oleoresin powder with good physicochemical properties.

Practical applications

Encapsulation of nutmeg seed oleoresin by vacuum drying produced a more stable powder with longer shelf life compared to those in the form of nutmeg seed oleoresin. The viscous liquid of nutmeg seed oleoresin is prone to oxidation and degradation during storage. This encapsulated nutmeg seed oleoresin powder can be used as a food ingredient for different applications, that is, beverage, confectionery, bakery products, and soup seasonings.

1 | INTRODUCTION

IL EY

2 of 17

Nutmeg (Myristica fragrans Houtt) is one of the main crop commodities in Indonesia, originating from Banda Island, Maluku. Indonesian nutmeg production continuously increases every year in parallel with increasing nutmeg exports each year. Nutmeg exports by Indonesia can supply up to 60% of the world's nutmeg demands. Currently, nutmeg is exported in the form of seeds and mace nutmeg, either as "simplisia" or powder. The selling value of nutmeg seeds could be improved by processing the raw products into nutmeg oleoresin with higher added value.

Nutmeg oleoresin (*Myristica fragrans* Houtt), as the result of fresh nutmeg seed extraction with ethanol, contains active substances. Nowadays, the utilization of nutmeg oleoresin as a flavoring agent is preferable by the food industry compared to fresh herbs because of its stability and highly concentrated form. In addition, oleoresin also has a homogenous flavor, aroma, pungency, standardized quality, and longer shelf life (Khadka, 2018). However, oleoresin is prone to oxidation in the presence of air, light, and water. Therefore, the encapsulation process is carried out to create a barrier between the active substances and other external factors (Jafari, 2017).

The most common coating materials for encapsulation are maltodextrin and Arabic gum (Lantigua et al., 2011). Based on research by Zilberboim et al. (1986), the bell pepper oleoresin encapsulated with Arabic gum was considered an expensive and non-feasible coating ingredient. Research by Nurlaili and Darmadji (2014) reported that the microencapsulation of pulp ginger oleoresin with maltodextrin could reach an encapsulation efficiency of up to 22%. Therefore, maltodextrin is preferably used as a coating agent because of its affordable price, neutral taste and aroma, water-soluble and film-forming properties, low viscosity at high solids concentrations, and is less prone to oxidation (de Barros Fernandes et al., 2014). The disadvantage of using maltodextrin is unstable emulsion stability to trap oleoresin. In this case, emulsifier addition could help to obtain a better coating performance. Whey protein isolate (WPI) is considered a suitable emulsifier in the food system. Principally, WPI will be absorbed in the interface of oil-in-water (o/w) droplets and forms a layer that can protect droplets from coalescence (Assagaf et al., 2013). The agitation speed of the homogenizer could affect the droplet size. The higher the agitation speed, the smaller the size of the oil droplet. Research by Jayanudin et al. (2018) reported that the higher agitation speed would increase the Reynolds number (Re) and reduce the emulsion droplet size.

Based on the explanation above, it is necessary to optimize the encapsulation of nutmeg oleoresin with different agitation speeds and ratios of maltodextrin and WPI.

Processing data by applying response surfaces methodology (RSM) made this research important by analyzing the optimum points and illustrating them in a three-dimensional graph.

2 | MATERIALS AND METHODS

2.1 | Materials

The extraction materials were nutmeg (*Myristica fragrans*), ethanol 96% solvent, and Whatman filter paper number 1. The encapsulation materials were extracted nutmeg oleoresin, maltodextrin (DE 15–20), whey protein isolate (WPI) 90, and distilled water; while materials for analysis were diphenyl picryl hydrazyl (DPPH) solution 0.06 mM, methanol 99.98%, ethanol 96%, and filter paper.

2.2 | Nutmeg oleoresin extraction with ultrasoundassisted extraction (UAE)

First, fresh nutmeg seeds were dried in the oven at 45°C for 24h. The dried nutmeg seeds were cut and ground before sieving with 36 mesh size. Nutmeg powder was dissolved with ethanol 96% by a ratio of 1:10. The extraction was carried out with an Erlenmeyer containing a sample, soaked in the ultrasonic cleaner UC-10SD at 50°C and 45 kHz frequency for 37.5 min. After that, the mixture was stored at chiller \pm 4°C for 30min for fat phase separation (Assagaf et al., 2012), then filtered. The solvent in the filtrate was evaporated with a rotary vacuum evaporator (40°C, speed 52 rpm, and pressure 0.09 MPa) until all solvent evaporated and a thick nutmeg oleoresin was obtained (Trendafilova et al., 2010 modified). Oleoresin was kept in a glass bottle laminated with aluminum foil and stored in a chiller.

2.3 | Response surface methodology (RSM)

The formula determination was generated from the Statistica 6.0 Response Surface Methodology (RSM) software as presented in Table 1 and produced 17 treatments for oleoresin encapsulation. The range of agitation speed was set between 2700 and 4000rpm, and 0.64 and 7.36g for maltodextrin and WPI. RSM generated three levels of oleoresin and total coatings materials (MD and WPI) ratio. The ratio of 1:1 was applied on treatments 3, 7, 12 and 13; ratio of 1:2 was applied on treatments 1, 4, 5, 8, 9, 10, 15, 16, and 17; and ratio of 1:3 was applied on treatments 2, 6, 11, and 14. RSM with factorial design, namely the central composite design (CCD), could simplify the number of experiments and be useful for testing multiple process variables. The CCD design is a 2^k factorial design or called partial factorial. It is expanded by adding observation points at the center, so the predicted parameter coefficients will be on the quadratic surface (second order) (Montgomery, 2001 in Lubis, 2010). Generally, CCD consists of a factorial point (2^k) , an axial point (2 k), and a center point (nc); where k is the variable number. The 2^k factorial design is used for experiments consisting of k factorial, where the low level is coded as (-1), the middle level as (0), the high level as (+1), and the minimum and maximum level at the axial point as $(-\alpha)$ and $(+\alpha)$. The calculation of the α value on the rotatable design CCD is as follows:
TABLE 1	Composition of materials
in the proce	ss of nutmeg seed oleoresin
encapsulate	analyzed with RSM

l	FOOUT	rocessing and ries	+Technology			
		Agitation		Coatings		Distilled
Treatment		speed (rpm)	Oleoresin (g)	MD (g)	WPI (g)	water (ml)
1 (F)		3000	4	6	2	16
2 (F)		3000	4	6	6	16
3 (F)		3000	4	2	2	16
4 (F)		3000	4	2	6	16
5 (F)		4000	4	6	2	16
6 (F)		4000	4	6	6	16
7 (F)		4000	4	2	2	16
8 (F)		4000	4	2	6	16
9 (A)		2700	4	4	4	16
10 (A)		4300	4	4	4	16
11 (A)		3500	4	7.36	4	16
12 (A)		3500	4	0.64	4	16
13 (A)		3500	4	4	0.64	16
14 (A)		3500	4	4	7.36	16
15 (C)		3500	4	4	4	16
16 (C)		3500	4	4	4	16
17 (C)		3500	4	4	4	16

Journal of

 $\alpha = [number of runs factorial point]^{1/4} = (2^k)^{\frac{1}{4}}$

In this study, three variables were used, so $\alpha = (2^3)^{1/4} = 1.682$. The magnitude of the variable with codes $-\alpha$ and $+\alpha$ could be calculated using the equation below:

 $-\alpha = (0) - 1.682 [(0) - (-1)] \parallel + \alpha = (0) + 1.682 [(0) - (-1)]$ RPM: $-\alpha = (3500) - 1.682 [(3500) - (3000)] = 2659$ $+\alpha = (3500) + 1.682 [(3500) - (3000)] = 4341$ MD: $-\alpha = (4) - 1.682 [(4) - (2)] = 0.636$ $+\alpha = (4) + 1.682 [(4) - (2)] = 7.364$

WPI: $-\alpha = (4) - 1.682[(4) - (2)] = 0.636$ $+\alpha = (4) + 1.682[(4) - (2)] = 7.364$

Therefore, each factor would have five levels of test points. The results of CCD analysis are presented in the form of graphs based on mathematical models and response surfaces. Those outputs are useful to predict the optimal value from the responses and to provide information on the interaction between the dependent and independent variables (Yousefi et al., 2016).

2.4 | Encapsulation of nutmeg oleoresin

Maltodextrin (MD) and whey protein isolate (WPI) were prepared and weighed. The suspension was made by adding distilled water to the MD and WPI mixture followed by agitation with a rotor-stator homogenizer at a particular speed for 15 min. Subsequently, 4g of oleoresin was added to MD-WPI suspension. The mixture was homogenized at a particular speed for 10min. Then, the mixture was poured into a glass pan to form a thin layer and dried using a vacuum oven at 50°C and 0.5 atm.

2.5 | Analysis of encapsulated nutmeg seed oleoresin

Physicochemical analyses of encapsulated oleoresins were trapped oil content, antioxidant activity, yield, water content, surface oil, water activity, and color intensity.

2.5.1 | Trapped oil content

One gram of encapsulated sample was placed in an Erlenmeyer, dissolved in 20 ml of ethanol 96%, and covered with aluminum foil. The sample was extracted by an ultrasonicator instrument at 50°C and 45 kHz frequency for 45 min. Filtration was carried out to separate the insoluble polymer fragments. The filtrate was transferred into an empty porcelain cup of known weight and then put in an oven at 45°C for 24h. The measurement results were recorded as the final weight of the cup (Asyhari, 2013; Nugraheni et al., 2015). The total trapped oil yield was calculated by using the following formula:

$$\label{eq:total_state} \begin{split} \text{Total oil } (\,\%\,) = \frac{\text{Final weight of } \text{cup } (g) - \text{Empty } \text{cup weight } (g)}{\text{Weight of sample } (1\,g)} \times 100\,\% \end{split}$$

Trapped oil
$$(\%)$$
 = Total oil $(\%)$ – Surface oil $(\%)$

3 of 17

2.5.2 | Antioxidant activity analysis

Approximately 0.5 g of encapsulated sample was weighed, then dissolved in 5 ml of ethanol 96%, and left for 2 h. After that, 0.1 ml of liquid was taken and dissolved with 3.9 ml of DPPH solution in a test tube and homogenized. The test tube with the sample was incubated in a dark room at 25°C for 30 min. After that, the sample absorbance was measured with a spectrophotometer at $\lambda = 517$ nm. The blank sample (control) was made by replacing the sample with 0.1 ml of ethanol (Amin et al., 2013; Hussein et al., 2017). Antioxidant activity was calculated as % inhibition using the formula below:

Antioxidant activity (%)
=
$$\left[\frac{\text{Absorbance of control} - \text{Absorbance of sample}}{\text{Absorbance of control}}\right] \times 100\%$$

2.5.3 | Yield calculation

The yield was calculated based on the weight of the encapsulated powder produced from vacuum drying compared to the total solids of the emulsion material (encapsulating material and oleoresin) (Yuniarti et al., 2013). The yield content (dry basis) was determined by the following formula:

$$\% \, Yield = \frac{Weight \, of \, microcapsule \, powder(g)}{Weight \, of \, emulsion \, solids \, (g)} \times 100 \, \%$$

2.5.4 | Moisture analysis

The moisture content of the sample was tested by using a moisture analyzer (Lindani, 2016). Half until One gram of sample was placed into the tool. The instrument will heat the sample until the value of the water content is shown constantly (approximately for 10 min).

2.5.5 | Surface oil analysis

One gram of encapsulated sample was put into a centrifuge tube and 5ml of ethanol 96% was added. The mixture was centrifuged at 1700 rpm for 15min. After that, the sample was filtered through filter paper and washed with 7.5ml of ethanol twice. The filtrate was transferred in a cup of known weight, then dried in an oven for 24h. After that, the sample was put in a desiccator for 15min and weighed as the final weight (Hussein et al., 2017 and Yazicioglu et al., 2015 with modification). The amount of surface oil was calculated by using the formula below:

 $\label{eq:Surface} \text{Surface oil} \left(\,\%\,\right) = \frac{\text{Cup final weight}\,(g) - \text{Empty cup weight}\,(g)}{\text{Sample weight}\,(1\,g)} \times 100\,\%$

2.5.6 | Water activity (a_w) analysis

Water activity was measured by using an a_w meter. First, a homogenized sample was put into a clean and dry container cup,

completely covering the bottom of the cup. The container was filled with samples until half a cup. The sample was measured with an a_w meter for 15 min and the result appeared on display (reader) (AquaLab, 2016).

2.5.7 | Color measurement

Color testing on encapsulating was carried out using Chroma Meter Minolta CR400. After instrument calibration, the encapsulated sample was placed in transparent plastic and a chroma meter beam was released. The measurement showed the values of L^* , a^* , and b^* . The value of L^* (lightness) of 100 indicates a light colored sample. The value of a^* indicates the tendency of red (+) and green (-). The b^* value indicates yellow (+) and blue (-) (Nguyen et al., 2018 with modification).

3 | RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

3.1 | Nutmeg seed oleoresin

Nutmeg seed oleoresin was processed by extraction using ethanol to dissolve the polar substances in nutmeg powder. The ethanol solvent was chosen because of its polarity by the presence of the -OH group to dissolve polar molecules. Oleoresin is a polar substance, while nutmeg butter is a non-polar substance. In addition, ethanol has a low boiling point at 78.5°C and 1 atm to easily remove the solvent from the extract (Joshi & Adhikari, 2019).

3.2 | Encapsulation of nutmeg seed oleoresin

The encapsulation process aimed to protect the active substance from oxidation by air and light, thereby increasing the shelf life of the product. The emulsification applied various levels of agitation speed by using a homogenizer. Homogenizer could reduce the oil globules' size and stabilize the emulsion by preventing coalescence. The agitation speed during homogenization could affect the droplet size, where increasing the agitation speed would result in a smaller emulsion droplet size.

In this study, a thin-layer drying technique with a vacuum dryer was used. Principally, this technique will create a thin layer on the glass pan surface, followed by drying in the oven. The thickness of the layer should be uniform by assuming a uniform temperature distribution (Onwude et al., 2016). This technique is very efficient with low-temperature (<60°C) application, so it will not damage the heat-sensitive substances. In addition, the utilization of a vacuum oven at a low-pressure setting (0.5 atm) would evaporate the water below the normal boiling point. It could preserve the texture and appearance of the material, minimize the loss of active substances such as aroma and volatile compounds, reduce nutrition

Journal of Food Processing and Preservation

degradation, reduce browning due to oxidation, and save energy (Prasetyaningrum, 2010).

3.3 | Trapped oil of nutmeg seed oleoresin encapsulate

The measurement results of trapped oil, antioxidant activity, yield, moisture content, surface oil, and water activity could be seen in Table 2. To evaluate the significance of each factor, an analysis of variance (ANOVA) was performed. ANOVA results showed that the polynomial quadratic model was a suitable model to represent the experimental data at a 95% confidence level. The correlation coefficient from ANOVA statistical analysis is shown in Table 3. Based on the statistical analysis, agitation speed (RPM), MD, and WPI addition had a significant effect on trapped oil, antioxidants, and yield (p < 0.05). Coefficient regression tables to predict results through polynomial equations are presented in Table 4.

Trapped oil content is a parameter representing how much oleoresin (core material) is encapsulated by the coating material. By encapsulation, the core material or active substances could be protected from degradation reactions, aroma, and volatile compound loss, thus maintaining flavor stability during storage (Kanakdande et al., 2007). The result of the trapped oil measurement is presented in the experimental response table (Table 2) and illustrated as a threedimensional graph (Figure 1).

Based on Figure 1 and Table 3, all three variables (RPM, MD, and WPI) had a significant effect on trapped oil content. From the graphs (Figure 1), there is a rising ridge chart where the critical point

TABLE 2	Experimental	responses based	on agitation speed,	MD, and WPI	concentrations
---------	--------------	-----------------	---------------------	-------------	----------------

Treatment	Pattern	RPM	MD	WPI	Trapped oil (%)	Antioxidant activity (%)	Yield (%)	Moisture content (%)	Surface oil (%)	a _w (%)
1	-+-	3000	6.00	2.00	8.9±0.71	53.79±38.89	62.83 ± 18.38	7.57 ± 0.10	4.1±2.97	0.57 ± 0.04
2	-++	3000	6.00	6.00	6.7 ± 2.62	53.25 ± 32.12	71.88 ± 0.00	8.43 ± 0.63	3.2 ± 0.57	0.55 ± 0.05
3	-	3000	2.00	2.00	8.1 ± 2.40	73.26 ± 24.53	68.75 ± 17.68	7.39±0.65	7.6 ± 5.02	0.57 ± 0.06
4	+	3000	2.00	6.00	4.7 ± 2.26	55.45 ± 30.72	62.92 ± 5.30	8.08 ± 0.16	4.0 ± 1.27	0.55 ± 0.00
5	++-	4000	6.00	2.00	10.9 ± 3.39	13.31 ± 2.67	60.83 ± 8.25	7.93 ± 0.93	2.3 ± 0.28	0.57 ± 0.02
6	+++	4000	6.00	6.00	6.1 ± 2.05	51.89 ± 1.74	67.81±5.75	8.87±0.69	4.2±0.85	0.55 ± 0.04
7	+	4000	2.00	2.00	8.8 ± 0.21	60.61 ± 4.59	51.25 ± 1.77	7.78 ± 0.25	7.5 ± 0.57	0.56 ± 0.04
8	+-+	4000	2.00	6.00	4.5 ± 4.31	46.48 ± 3.85	60.00±9.43	9.12±0.04	3.4 ± 1.41	0.57 ± 0.00
9	a00	2700	4.00	4.00	7.4 ± 1.20	67.25±25.78	70.83 ± 0.00	8.17 ± 0.34	3.4 ± 0.49	0.56 ± 0.08
10	A00	4300	4.00	4.00	7.2±3.39	73.47 ± 19.28	72.92 ± 2.95	8.42 ± 0.60	5.4 ± 1.13	0.55 ± 0.04
11	0A0	3500	7.36	4.00	8.6±3.39	17.25 ± 7.32	71.60 ± 4.60	8.77 ± 0.18	3.6 ± 0.57	0.58 ± 0.04
12	0a0	3500	0.64	4.00	2.2 ± 1.91	91.33 ± 0.69	58.47±7.37	8.64 ± 0.61	9.8±3.04	0.56 ± 0.09
13	00a	3500	4.00	0.64	13.7 ± 0.14	61.68 ± 42.81	54.42 ± 4.91	8.00 ± 0.75	5.4 ± 1.20	0.57 ± 0.04
14	00A	3500	4.00	7.36	7.0±4.67	61.07 ± 25.47	63.46 ± 11.41	9.30 ± 0.04	2.9 ± 1.98	0.58 ± 0.06
15 (C)	000	3500	4.00	4.00	10.3 ± 2.62	91.21 ± 2.43	66.67±5.89	8.61 ± 0.44	3.1 ± 1.56	0.54 ± 0.07
16 (C)	000	3500	4.00	4.00	10.8 ± 3.82	89.80 ± 1.01	66.67±5.89	8.96 ± 0.06	2.6 ± 1.41	0.55 ± 0.07
17 (C)	000	3500	4.00	4.00	9.6±1.98	91.71 ± 1.11	66.67±5.89	8.23 ± 0.21	7.7±9.40	0.56 ± 0.06

TABLE 3 Significant levels of ANOVA polynomial quadratic models

	p-value					
Factor	Trapped oil	Antioxidant	Yield	Moisture content	Surface oil	a _w
RPM	0.652814	0.345729	0.150548	0.100713	0.768573	0.711615
RPM×RPM	0.004669ª	0.063227	0.256910	0.120237	0.781478	0.997576
MD	0.001167ª	0.008870 ^a	0.020329ª	0.657418	0.022711 ^a	0.617207
MD×MD	0.000301 ^a	0.009345 ^a	0.411353	0.654599	0.249141	0.272313
WPI	0.000098 ^a	0.925792	0.047565ª	0.003462 ^a	0.143077	0.449984
WPI×WPI	0.991724	0.021194 ^a	0.028434 ^a	0.542120	0.662044	0.103064
RPM×MD	0.703507	0.629725	0.229139	0.575373	0.976896	0.907489
RPM×WPI	0.207726	0.321592	0.288194	0.511938	0.666199	0.381533
MD×WPI	0.818747	0.124712	0.268150	0.831498	0.127129	0.510786

^aSignificant.

TABLE 4 Coeffi	icient regression val	lue for polynomial qu	adratic models						
				Coefficient regres	ision value				
Factor	Trapped oil	Anti-oxidant	Yield	Moisture content	Surface oil	°,	Lightness	a [*] value	<i>b</i> ° value
Mean	-53.5064 ^a	-346.601	173.6736	-3.82726	10.07204	0.654362 ^a	-12.7101	-12.7101	12.53253
RPM	0.0318 ^a	0.242	-0.0565	0.00588	0.00349	-0.000020	0.0105	0.0105	-0.00311
RPM×RPM	-0.0000 ^a	-0.000	0.0000	-0.00000	-0.00000	0.000000	-0.0000	-0.0000	0.00000
MD	3.6348ª	23.211	-4.3574	0.43105	-3.03389	-0.006375	0.6135	0.6135	2.07388
MD× MD	-0.4390 ^a	-3.750 ^a	-0.2505	-0.01308	0.16536	0.001041	-0.1027	-0.1027	-0.19311
WPI	0.4961	-2.295	0.4477	0.07146	-1.97972	-0.025062	1.1285	1.1285	3.65184
WPI×WPI	0.0007	-3.124 ^a	-0.7892 ^a	-0.01795	-0.06003	0.001638	-0.0600	-0.0600	-0.11548
RPM×MD	0.0001	-0.003	0.0018	-0.00008	-0.00002	0.000000	0.0001	0.0001	0.00008
RPM×WPI	-0.0004	0.005	0.0016	0.00009	0.00028	0.000004	-0.0002	-0.0002	-0.00053
MD×WPI	0.0187	2.187	0.4095	-0.00734	0.27031	-0.000719	-0.0894	-0.0894	-0.10865
R ²	0.95	0.84	0.83	0.79	0.71	0.50	0.84	0.84	0.88

Journal of

Food Processing and Preservation

WILEY

6 of 17

or stationary point is not in the experimental area but occupies the maximum point. Formula with the ratio of oleoresin and coating 1:1 had the highest trapped oil yield of 8.1%-13.7%, followed by the formula with the ratio of 1:2 (4.5%-10.9%) and 1:3 (6.1%-8.6%), respectively. Maltodextrin as a coating material plays an important role in the effectiveness of oil trapping. If the coating material amount is insufficient to wrap core materials, there will be a lot of core material on the outer surface of the encapsulate (Jayanudin et al., 2017). WPI contains up to 90% of free proteins which makes those proteins easily dissolve in the emulsion system and interact with oil (oleoresin). Thus, the more WPI added, the more stable the emulsion system will be. Whey protein isolate could function as a suitable encapsulating agent (Young et al., 1993 in Nasrullah, 2010). In addition, emulsion stability is affected by the higher agitation speed, which reduces the size of the oil globule (oleoresin) where oil globules can be completely covered by the coating material. The homogenization process can also reduce the tendency of fat globules to clump or coalescence due to smaller droplet sizes (Tetra Pak, 2015).

3.4 | Surface oil of nutmeg seed oleoresin encapsulate

As one of the encapsulation process parameters, surface oil indicates the amount of oil present on the surface and not encapsulated well. This parameter could analyze how much oleoresin can be encapsulated completely (Nasrullah, 2010). Non-encapsulated oleoresin or free oleoresin on the surface will be easily damaged due to evaporation and oxidation (Shaidi & Han, 1993 in Nasrullah, 2010).

Figure 2 shows a saddle system graph where the elliptical contour extends significantly along with one of its main axes. The amount of coating material influenced the surface oil of the encapsulate. Formula with core and coating material ratio of 1:1 showed the highest surface oil yield (5%–9%), followed by the ratio of 1:2 (2.3%–7.7%) and 1:3 (2.9%–4.2%), respectively. As presented in Table 2, it can be seen that increasing the amount of coating material will reduce the amount of surface oil. It might be due to the thicker encapsulated wall formed, so the amount of oleoresin that comes out will be less (Jayanudin et al., 2017).

Table 3 indicates that MD has a substantial effect on the surface oil amount. The low amount of maltodextrin to core material will result in insufficient coating material to cover the whole surface of the oleoresin droplets to strengthen the capsule wall (Laohasongkrama et al., 2011). The addition of maltodextrin which is not balanced with whey protein will increase the level of surface oil. Maltodextrin is a lipophobic compound, so it cannot bind to the oil molecule. Therefore, it is not enough to emulsify the oil to be encapsulated and result in a lot of oil that is not encapsulated. Therefore, the addition of WPI is used in the formula since WPI is considered a suitable emulsifier in the food system. Principally, WPI will be absorbed in the interface of oil-in-water (o/w) droplets and forms a layer that can protect droplets from coalescence (Assagaf et al., 2013).

Significant

FIGURE 1 Fitted surface of trapped oil. (a) effect of agitation speed (rpm) and maltodextrin concentration on trapped oil encapsulate (b) effect of agitation speed (rpm) and whey protein isolate concentration on trapped oil encapsulate (c) effect of concentration of maltodextrin and whey protein isolate on trapped oil encapsulate.





FIGURE 2 Fitted surface of surface oil. (a) the effect of agitation speed (rpm) and the concentration of maltodextrin on encapsulate surface oil (b) the effect of agitation speed (rpm) and the concentration of whey protein isolate on surface oil encapsulate (c) the effect of concentration of maltodextrin and whey protein isolate on surface oil encapsulate.

(a)



(b)



Journal of Food Processing and Preservation

An antioxidant is a substance to inhibit or prevent oxidation in the substrate. Free radicals are unstable and highly reactive molecules with one or more unpaired electrons present in their outermost orbitals. To be more stable, free radicals tend to react with the other molecules to obtain electron pairs (Karim et al., 2015).

In this research, 1,1-diphenyl2-picrylhydrazyl (DPPH) becomes the free radical reacted with active substances from the encapsulated oleoresin. Flavonoids nutmeg oleoresin will donate hydrogen radicals (H+) or oxidized by the DPPH and result in more stability and low reactivity of free radicals (Amic et al., 2003 in Karim et al., 2015). A study by Sharma et al. (2015) reported that total flavonoids in onions would decrease after heating at a high temperature. It indicates that some flavonoids might be destroyed at high-temperature treatment. Nutmeg oleoresin contains phytochemical compounds with antioxidant activity such as myristicin, isoeugenol, and eugenol compounds (Ginting et al., 2017).

Based on DPPH in vitro testing, the antioxidant activity of fresh nutmeg oleoresin was 94.23%, while the antioxidant activity of nutmeg oleoresin encapsulate was ranging from 13.31% to 91.33% (see Table 2). The lowest antioxidant activity value was obtained from treatment 5 with an agitation speed of 4000rpm, 6g of maltodextrin, and 2g of whey protein isolate. The highest antioxidant activity values were obtained from treatment 12 with an agitation speed of 3500rpm, 0.64g of maltodextrin, and 4g of whey protein isolate. Based on research by Ginting et al. (2017) about the antioxidant activity of n-hexane extract of nutmeg plants, the antioxidant activity of nutmeg seeds was in the range 60.86%–87.85%.

From the result in Table 2, there was an interaction between surface oil and antioxidants, where encapsulates with low surface oil will have low antioxidants and vice versa. In other words, the encapsulation with a higher amount of surface oil will be more susceptible to damage (oxidation) compared to encapsulates that have low surface oil or not too high antioxidant activity.

In Figure 3, there are three graphs illustrating a maximum surface visual where the critical point is in the experimental region and the stationary point is at the maximum point. The antioxidant activity values of encapsulating at three different core and coating material ratios (1:1, 1:2, and 1:3) were 53.79%-91.33%, 13.31%-91.71%, and 17.25%–61.07%, respectively. The high amount of maltodextrin as encapsulating material will produce low antioxidant activity if the ratio of MD:WPI is not proportional. This is due to the wall being formed getting thicker. Maltodextrin has good stability against oil oxidation but has low oil retention, thus it is usually combined with an emulsifier (Kenyon, 1995 in Nasrullah, 2010). If the composition of maltodextrin is high and not balanced with whey protein, some oleoresin compounds might be damaged during the drying process because of their presence on the surface. At treatment 17 (91.71%) (ratio of core material: coating = 1:2), antioxidants were produced higher than at treatment 12 (91.33%) (ratio of core material: coating = 1:1), this can be caused by the number of solids that are too high which results in puffing (swelling) and cracking of particles so

that the encapsulate ruptured because of high temperatures, and the core material comes out of the capsule (Li et al., 2015).

3.6 | Yield of nutmeg oleoresin encapsulate

The yield (in %) of encapsulation could indicate how optimal the powder produced from each formula and how much loss in each formula is. Based on Table 2, the yield value of the encapsulate is not too high and ranges from 51.25% to 72.92%. It might be due to many product losses during the processing. Based on Table 3, the MD and WPI variables have a significant effect on the encapsulate yield (p < 0.05). The addition of maltodextrin and whey protein isolate as a coating material has a higher total solid, thus giving a higher yield.

Figure 4 is forming a saddle system graph where the elliptical contour extends significantly along one of its main axes and the rising ridge graph where the critical point or stationary point is not in the experimental area and the stationer point is at the maximum point. Formula with the ratio of core and coating material 1:1 has the lowest yield of encapsulating (51.25%–68.75%), followed by the ratio of 1:2 (60.00%–72.92%) and 1:3 (63.46%–71.88%), respectively.

3.7 | Moisture content of nutmeg oleoresin encapsulate

Moisture content is one of the encapsulated quality aspects. The higher moisture content in encapsulates will trigger the oxidation and hydrolysis reaction resulting in quality degradation and biological damage (Bakry et al., 2015). According to SNI 01–3709-1995, the maximum moisture content of spice powder is 12% (National Standardization Agency 1995). The moisture content of encapsulated powder in this study was in the range 7.39%–9.30%, so they met the SNI water content specification. Based on ANOVA results in Table 3, the WPI variable had a significant effect on water content (p < 0.05). Whey protein isolate is very hygroscopic or sensitive to moisture and stickiness (Hogan & O'callaghan, 2013). Hence, the addition of whey protein isolate could increase the water content of the encapsulated powder.

Figure 5 shows the rising ridge graph where the critical point or stationary point is not in the experimental region and the stationer point is at the maximum point. The addition of coating material affected the water content of encapsulates powder. The lowest water content was obtained from the formula with the ratio of core and coating material 1:1, while the highest water content was from the formula with a ratio of 1:3. The addition of whey protein isolate has a significant effect in increasing the water content of the encapsulated powder due to the hygroscopic properties of whey protein. Based on Prasetyo in (Ramadhani, 2016), too much addition of coating material as a filler will cause clotting and case hardening. As a result, the moisture inside the droplet cannot come out and contact with the drying air. The droplet surface is covered by solid substances and will minimize the water-hot air contact area. Therefore, adding coating material could increase the water content.



FIGURE 3 Fitted surface of antioxidant activity. (a) the effect of agitation speed (rpm) and the concentration of maltodextrin on the antioxidant activity of the encapsulate (b) the effect of the agitation speed (rpm) and the concentration of whey protein isolate on the antioxidant activity of the encapsulate (c) the effect of the concentration of maltodextrin and whey protein isolate on the antioxidant activity of the encapsulate.

(a)



(b)



FIGURE 4 Fitted surface of yield. (a) the effect of agitation speed (rpm) and maltodextrin concentration on the percentage of encapsulate yield (b) the effect of agitation speed (rpm) and the concentration of whey protein isolate on the percentage of encapsulate yield (c) effect of the concentration of maltodextrin and whey protein isolate on the percentage of encapsulate yield.



Journal of Food Processing and Preservation





17454549,0. Downloaded from https://its.onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/jfpp.17151 by Victoria Kristina Ananingsih - INASPHINARI - INDONESIA, Wiley Online Library on [09/11/2022]. See the Terms and Conditions (https://onlinelibrary.wiley

:om/term

and-conditions) on Wiley Online Library for rules of use; OA articles are governed by the applicable Creative Commons License

FIGURE 5 Fitted surface of moisture. (a) the effect of agitation speed (rpm) and maltodextrin concentration on encapsulate water content (b) effect of agitation speed (rpm) and whey protein isolate concentration on encapsulate water content (c) the effect of concentration of maltodextrin and whey protein isolate on encapsulate water content.







FIGURE 6 Fitted surface of water activities. (a) the effect of agitation speed (rpm) and maltodextrin concentration on encapsulate water activity (b) effect of agitation speed (rpm) and whey protein isolate concentration on encapsulate water activity (c) effect of concentration of maltodextrin and whey protein isolate on encapsulate water activity.

13 of 17 Journal of WILEY fst Journal of Food Processing and Preservation 0.580 0.575 0.570 0.565 0.560 Pa 0.555 0.550 0.545 0.57 0.565 Ba. 300 0.56 200 ROO 0.555 0.55 (a) 0.61 0.60 0.59 0.58 0.57 ¥ 0.56 0.55 0.5 0.6 0.59 ane ane 200 0.58 1800 0.57 2400 0 0.56 0.55 (b) 0.62 0.61 0.60 0.59 0.58 0.57 PN 0.56 0.55 0.54 0.61 0.6 0.59 r 0.58 ~ 0 0 0.57 0.56

3.8 | Water activity of nutmeg oleoresin encapsulate

Water activity (a_w) indicates the amount of free water used by microorganisms to grow. Therefore, this parameter is important to define the microbiology risk in encapsulated powder and the stability during storage. The water activity values of oleoresin encapsulate in this study were in the range 0.54–0.58. Tapia et al. (2020) stated that the food product must have water activity below 0.6 to prevent mold growth. Based on ANOVA analysis in Table 3, no variable affects water activity in the powder. It might be due to the vacuum oven's ability to produce water vapor during off conditions. In addition, wehey protein isolate could function as a suitable encapsulating agent, so that the water vapor in the vacuum oven will be easily absorbed this increase the water activity.

Figure 6 shows the graphs that form various models. The interaction graph of agitation speed with maltodextrin shows the falling ridge graph where the critical point or stationary point is not in the experimental area and the stationary point is at the minimum point. The interaction graph of mixing speed with whey protein shows the saddle graph system where elliptical contours extend significantly along one of its main axes (Taylor & Francis, 2008).

3.9 | Color analysis of nutmeg oleoresin encapsulate

The color of the encapsulated powder indicated the physical properties based on the constituent materials. Principally, the chroma meter worked through the interaction of energy diffuse light and atoms or molecules of an object being analyzed. The light source of a Xenon lamp was beamed onto the sample surface and was reflected by the spectral sensor. Six high-sensitivity silicon photocells with a dual-back beam system measured the reflected light of the sample (Candra et al., 2014). The L^* indicator was indicated by a value of 0 (black/dark) to 100 (light/white). The reflected light of the L^* indicator showed the achromatic colors of white, gray, and black. An a^* indicator showed a chromatic color of red if positive and green if negative. A positive b^* indicator indicated a yellow chromatic color and a negative b^* value indicated a blue color intensity.

Based on Table 5, the difference in agitation speed showed no effect on color of encapsulated powder, while the addition of a coating material increased the values of *L* and b^* , and decreased the value of a^* . The addition of coating material could reduce the density of the brown color of oleoresin. However, differences in coating formulations did not produce significant differences in values of *L*, a^* , and b^* . The brown color of encapsulated powder decreased as the amount of coating material increased.

3.10 | Optimization of process parameter combinations

The optimum point was predicted by response surface methodology from the combination of optimal conditions and interactions between independent variables (Ratnawati et al., 2018). In the optimization step, the independent variables for optimization were trapped oil, antioxidant activity, and yield. Those variables (parameters) could reflect the effectiveness and efficiency of encapsulation. The Statistica 6.0 RSM program generated five optimum formula

TABLE 5 Results of measurement parameters of encapsulated color

					Colors		
Treatment	Pattern	RPM	MD	WPI	L	а	b
1	-+-	3000	6,00	2,00	66.15±2.33	7.72±0.29	18.05 ± 0.21
2	-++	3000	6,00	6,00	70.27±5.19	6.08±0.93	20.35 ± 0.10
3	-	3000	2,00	2,00	59.68±5.03	7.49 ± 1.33	16.55 ± 0.03
4	+	3000	2,00	6,00	66.07±0.64	7.55 ± 0.31	20.24 ± 1.15
5	++-	4000	6,00	2,00	70.84 ± 2.36	7.60 ± 1.32	18.69 ± 0.41
6	+++	4000	6,00	6,00	69.47±0.12	5.54 ± 1.14	18.51 ± 2.76
7	+	4000	2,00	2,00	60.09±4.66	7.12 ± 1.77	16.53 ± 5.43
8	+-+	4000	2,00	6,00	64.49 ± 1.00	6.21 ± 1.59	18.45 ± 5.53
9	a00	2700	4,00	4,00	72.26 ± 0.00	6.48 ± 0.15	19.90 ± 0.05
10	A00	4300	4,00	4,00	70.95±0.79	7.11 ± 0.14	20.39 ± 0.08
11	0A0	3500	7,36	4,00	74.06±3.53	6.20 ± 0.46	19.28 ± 0.78
12	0a0	3500	0,64	4,00	58.67±11.87	7.19 ± 0.52	15.71 ± 3.86
13	00a	3500	4,00	0,64	61.42±3.58	8.40 ± 1.56	17.14 ± 0.74
14	00A	3500	4,00	7,36	72.18 ± 2.13	5.96 ± 0.48	19.61 ± 0.64
15 (C)	000	3500	4,00	4,00	65.61±7.25	7.91±2.15	18.76 ± 1.88
16 (C)	000	3500	4,00	4,00	62.71±9.83	8.62±2.97	19.28 ± 1.75
17 (C)	000	3500	4,00	4,00	67.61±1.68	7.21 ± 0.99	20.63 ± 0.31

TABLE 6 Formulas generated in optimization stages

 	Jou Fo	irnal of od Processing	and Preservatio	n Food Science	t -Wile	-WILEY 15 of		
Factor		Level factor	Predicted total oil (%)	Predicted antioxidant activity (%)	Predicted yield (%)	Desirability value		
RPM (rpm	1)	2659.104	6.97	71.67	73.62	0.68		
		3079.552	9.37	88.18	69.21	0.79		
		3500.000	10.23	91.50	66.79 17.00	0.79		
		3920.448	9.56	81.65	66.38	0.73		
		4340.896	7.35	58.62	67.97	0.59		
MD (g)		0.636	3.13	72.25	58.72	0.28		
		2.318	7.92	92.48	63.46	0.66		
		4.000	10.23	91.50	66.79	0.79		
		5.682	10.06	69.31	68.70	0.73		
		7.364	7.40	25.91	69.19	0.39		
WPI (g)		0.636	13.45	55.54	53.66	0.39		
		2.318	11.84	82.36	62.46	0.73		
		4.000	10.23	91.50	66.79	0.79		
		5.682	8.63	82.98	66.66	0.71		
		7.364	7.03	56.79	62.07	0.49		

Note: The best formula resulted from a process at an agitation speed of 3500 rpm and the addition of 4 g maltodextrin and 4 g WPI. That formula had a trapped oil content of 10.23%, antioxidant activity of 91.50%, yield of 66.79%, water activity of 0.55, moisture content of 8.63, and color intensity L^* 65.47, a^* 7.90, and b^* 19.57. This formula could be applied to produce nutmeg seed oleoresin powder with good physicochemical properties.

solutions as presented in Table 6. Process conditions with an agitation speed of 3500 rpm, 4 g of maltodextrin, and 4 g of whey protein isolate would produce an encapsulated powder with characteristics for an optimization target of 79.39%. Then, the optimum formula could be achieved by using polynomial guadratic models shown in Table 4.

CONCLUSION 4

The nutmeg oleoresin encapsulation process was optimized by the response surface methodology (desirability value of 0.794) and resulted in the following setting variable: 3500 rpm of agitation speed, 4 g of maltodextrin, and 4 g of whey protein isolate addition. It means that those setting variables could produce nutmeg oleoresin encapsulates as desired (optimum) at 79.39%. The optimum formula had a trapped oil content of 10.23%, antioxidant activity of 91.50%, yield of 66.79%, water activity of 0.551, moisture content of 8.63%, and color properties L = 65.47, $a^* = 7.90$, and $b^* = 19.570$. As a suggestion, further research on the stability and safety (in vivo testing) of nutmeg oleoresin encapsulation needs to be done.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The authors would like to thank all those who have contributed to assist in this research, especially colleagues and students in the research group of Food Processing and Engineering, Soegijapranata Catholic University.

FUNDING INFORMATION

This research was fully funded by the Ministry of Research and Higher Education, number: 010/L6/AK/SP2H.1/RESEARCH/2019.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

There are none to declare.

DATA AVAILABILITY STATEMENT

The data that supports the findings of this study are available in the supplementary material of this article.

REFERENCES

- Amin, A., Wunas, J., & Anin, Y. M. (2013). Antioxidant activity test and ethanol extract of Klika Faloak (Sterculia quadrifida R.Br) using the DPPH method. Jurnal Fitofarmaka. Indonesia, 2(2), 111–114. https:// media.neliti.com/media/publications/259622-uji-aktivitas-antio ksidan-ekstrak-etanol-5e322216.pdf
- AquaLab. (2016). Water activity meter. Decagon Devices, Inc. Version: August 2, 2016. https://www.meyer.ca/wp-content/uploa ds/2014/08/13484_AquaLab-Series-Four_Web.pdf
- Assagaf, M., Hastuti, P., Yuliani, S., & Supriyadi. (2013). Characteristics of Microencapsulated Nutmeg Oleoresin: Determination of the Ratio of Whey Protein Concentrate: Maltodextrin. Agritech. http:// library.binus.ac.id/eColls/eJournal/KaraketeristikOreleorisinPalaY

15 of 17

ang Dimikroenkap sulasi Penentuan Rasio Whey protein concertra te WPCM alto dekstrin (MD). pdf

- Assagaf, M., Hastuti, P., Hidayat, C., & Supriyadi. (2012). Optimization of Nutmeg (Myristica fragrans Houtt) Oleoresin Extraction Origin From North Maluku Using Response Surface Methodology (RSM). Agritech, 32(4), 383–391.https://jurnal.ugm.ac.id/agritech/article/ view/9581/7156.
- Asyhari, A. (2013). Formulation and physical evaluation of microcapsules from soybean extract (Glycine max L. Merr) by Snd Physical Evaluation of Microcapsules from Solvent Evaporation Method. Skripsi Program Studi Farmasi, Universitas Hasanuddin Makassar. https://doi. org/10.1017/CBO9781107415324.004
- Bakry, A. M., Abbas, S., Ali, B., Majeed, H., Abouelwafa, M. Y., Mousa, A., & Liang, L. (2015). Microencapsulation of oils : A comprehensive review of benefits, techniques, and applications. *Comprehensive Reviews in Food Science and Food Safety*, 15, 143–182. https://doi. org/10.1111/1541-4337.12179
- Lantigua, M.-B., Expósito-Molina, I., Reineccius, G. A., López-Hernández, O., & Pino, J. A. (2011). Influence of spray-dryer air temperatures on encapsulated mandarin oil. Drying Technology, 29(5), 520–526. https://doi.org/10.1080/07373937.2010.513780
- Candra, F. N., Riyadi, P. H., & Wijayanti, I. (2014). Utilization of Karagenan (Euchema cottoni) as emulsifier to stability of Nila (Oreochromis niloticus) fish meat ball manufacturing by cold storage temperature. Jurnal Pengolahan dan Bioteknologi Hasil Perikanan, 3(1), 167-176. https://media.neliti.com/media/publi cations/125912-ID-none.pdf
- de Barros Fernandes, R. V., Borges, S. V., & Botrel, D. A. (2014). Gum Arabic/starch/maltodextrin/inulin as wall materials on the microencapsulation of rosemary essential oil. *Carbohydrate Polymers*, 101, 524–532. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.carbpol.2013.09.083
- Ginting, B., Mustanir, M., Helwati, H., Desiyana, L. S., Eralisa, E., & Mujahid, R. (2017). Antioxidant activity of N-hexane extract of nutmeg plants from South Aceh Province. *Jurnal Natural*, 17(1), 39. https://doi.org/10.24815/jn.v17i1.6969
- Hogan, S. A., & O'callaghan, D. J. (2013). Moisture sorption and stickiness behaviour of hydrolysed whey protein/lactose powders. airy Science & Technology, 93, 505–521. https://doi.org/10.1007/ s13594-013-0129-2
- Hussein, A. M. S., Kamil, M. M., Lotfy, S. N., Mahmoud, K. F., Mehaya, F. M., & Mohammad, A. A. (2017). Influence of Nanoencapsulation on chemical composition, antioxidant activity and thermal stability of rosemary essential oil. *American Journal* of Food Technology, 12(3), 170-177. https://doi.org/10.3923/ ajft.2017.170.177
- Jafari, S. M. (2017). An overview of nanoencapsulation techniques and their classification. *Nanoencapsulation technologies for the food and nutraceutical industries* (pp. 1–34). Academic Press. https://doi. org/10.1016/B978-0-12-809436-5.00001-X
- Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Fahrurrozi, M., & Wirawan, S. K. (2018). Simple empirical equations for predicting particle size of red ginger oleoresin encapsulation. ALCHEMY Jurnal Penelitian Kimia, 14(2), 178. https://doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.14.2.17076.178-192
- Jayanudin, J., Rochmadi, R., Renaldi, K., & Pangihutan, P. (2017). The influence of coating material on encapsulation efficiency of red ginger oleoresin. ALCHEMY Jurnal Penelitian Kimia, 13(2), 274. https:// doi.org/10.20961/alchemy.v13i2.5406
- Joshi, D. R., & Adhikari, N. (2019). An Overview on Common Organic Solvents and Their Toxicity. *Journal of Pharmaceutical Research International*, 28(3), 1–18.
- Kanakdande, D., Bhosale, R., & Singhal, R. S. (2007). Stability of cumin oleoresin microencapsulated in different combination of gum Arabic, maltodextrin and modified starch. *Carbohydrate Polymers*, 67, 536–541. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.carbpol.2006.06.023
- Karim, K., Jura, M., & Sabang, S. M. (2015). Activity test of Patikan Kebo (Euphorbia hirta L.). Jurnal Akademika Kimia, 4(2), 56–63.

- Khadka, G. (2018). Preparation and shelf life study of cinnamon oleoresin incorporated yoghurt. Department of Food Technology, Institute of Science and Technology Tribhuvan University Nepal. http:// webcache.googleusercontent.com/search?q=cache:IDVyF eYhnqMJ:202.45.146.37:8080/xmlui/bitstream/handle/12345 6789/89/CD-ma-halne-pdf.pdf%3Fsequence%3D1%26isAllowe d%3Dy+&cd=8&hl=ban&ct=clnk&gl=id
- Laohasongkrama, K., Mahamaktudsanee, T., & Chaiwanichsiri, S. (2011). Microencapsulation of macadamia oil by spray drying. Procedia Food Science, 1, 1660–1665.
- Li, J., Xiong, S., Wang, F., Regenstein, J. M., & Liu, R. (2015). Optimization of microencapsulation of fish oil with gum Arabic/casein/Betacyclodextrin mixtures by spray drying. *Journal of Food Science*, 80(7), C1445–C1452. https://doi.org/10.1111/1750-3841.12928
- Lindani, A. (2016). Comparison of moisture analyzer measurement method with oven method on cookies Sandwich biscuits products at PT Mondelez Indonesia manufacturing. Institut Pertanian Bogor, Fakultas Teknologi Pertanian.
- Lubis, A. (2010). Study on the use of response surface methods for postharvest optimization. Sekolah Pascasarjana Institut Pertanian Bogor.
- Nasrullah, F. (2010). The effect of the composition of the encapsulating material on the quality of black pepper oleoresin microcapsules (Piper ningrum L.). Faculty of Agricultural Technology, Institut Pertanian Bogor. https://docplayer.info/50854863-Skripsi-pengaruh-kompo sisi-bahan-pengkapsul-terhadap-kualitas-mikrokapsul-oleoresin-lada-hitam-piper-nigrum-l-oleh-fahmi-nasrullah-f.html
- Nguyen, T.-T., Phan-Thi, H., Pham-Hoang, B.-N., Ho, P.-T., Tran, T. T., & Waché, Y. (2018). Encapsulation of *Hibiscus sabdariffa* L. anthocyanins as natural colours in yeast. *Food Research International*, 107, 275–280. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.foodres.2018.02.044, https:// www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S096399691 8301376
- Nugraheni, A., Yunarto, N., & Sulistyaningrum, N. (2015). Optimization of Java turmeric (*Curcuma xanthorrhiza* Roxb.) extract microencapsulation formula using water based coating material. *Jurnal Kefarmasian Indonesia*, 5(2), 98–105. https://doi.org/10.22435/jki. v5i2.4404.98-105
- Nurlaili, F. A., Darmadji, P., & Pranoto, Y. (2014). Microencapsulation of pulp ginger (*Zingiber officinale* var. Rubrum) oleoresin with maltodextrin coating. Agritech, 34(1), 22–28. https://jurnal.ugm.ac.id/ agritech/article/download/9518/7093
- Onwude, D. I., Hashim, N., Janius, R. B., Nawi, N. M., & Abdan, K. (2016). Modeling the thin-layer drying of fruits and vegetables: A review. *Comprehensive Reviews in Food Science and Food Safety*, 15, 599– 618. https://doi.org/10.1111/1541-4337.12196
- Prasetyaningrum, A. (2010). Design of vacuum drying oven and its application as a drying device at low temperature. *Riptek*, 4(1), 45–53. https://www.academia.edu/27338855/rancang_bangun_oven_drying_vaccum_dan_aplikasinya_sebagai_alat_penge ring_pada_suhu_rendah
- Ramadhani, D. (2016). Effect of maltodextrin and egg white concentration on characteristics of red dragon fruit powder drink (Hylocereus polyrhizus). Skripsi Fakultas Teknik Prodi Teknologi Pangan Universitas Pasundan Bandung. https://jurnal.ugm.ac.id/agritech/article/ download/12725/23987
- Ratnawati, S. E., Ekantari, N., Pradipta, R. W., & Pramita, B. L. (2018). The application of response surface methodology (RSM) on the optimization of catfish bone calcium extraction. *Jurnal Perikanan Universitas Gajah Mada*, 20(1), 41–48.
- Sharma, K., Ko, E. Y., Assefa, A. D., Ha, S., Nile, S. H., Lee, E. T., & Park, S. W. (2015). Temperature-dependent studies on the Total phenolics, flavonoids, antioxidant activities, and sugar content in six onion varieties. *Journal of Food and Drug Analysis*, 23, 243–252. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jfda.2014.10.005
- Tapia, M. S., Alzamora, S. M., & Chirife, J. (2020). Effects of water activity (aw) on microbial stability as a hurdle in food preservation.

In G. V. Barbosa-Canovas, A. J. Fontana, Jr., S. J. Schmidt, & T. P. Labuza (Eds.), *Water activity in foods: Fundamentals and applications* (2nd ed., pp. 323–355). John Wiley & Sons, Inc. https://doi. org/10.1002/9781118765982.ch14, https://onlinelibrary.wiley. com/doi/abs/10.1002/9781118765982.ch14

Journal of

Food Processing and Preservation Foods

- Taylor & Francis. (2008). Optimization in food engineering. European Journal of Operational Research, 14, 345. https://doi. org/10.1016/0377-2217(83)90276-x
- Tetra Pak. (2015). Dairy processing handbook. Tetra Pak International. ISBN 9789176111321.https://webcache.googleusercontent.com/ search?q=cache:YaSOOYLwZgMJ:https://dairyprocessinghand b ook.tetra pak.com/chapter/homogenizers+&cd=9&hl= ban&ct=clnk&gl=id
- Trendafilova, A., Chanev, C., & Todorova, M. (2010). Ultrasound-assisted extraction of Alantolactone and Isoalantolactone from Inula Helenium roots. *Pharmacognosy Magazine*, 6(23), 234–237. https:// doi.org/10.4103/0973-1296.66942
- Yazicioglu, B., Serpil, S., & Gulum, S. (2015). Microencapsulation of wheat germ oil. Journal Food Science Technology, 52(6), 3590–3597. https:// www.researchgate.net/publication/277602302_Microencapsulat ion_of_wheat_germ_oil
- Yousefi, N., Pazouki, M., Hesari, F. A., & Alizadeh, M. (2016). Statistical evaluation of the pertinent parameters in biosynthesis of ag/ MWf-CNT composites using Plackett-Burman design and response

surface methodology. Iranian Journal of Chemistry & Chemical Engineering, 35(2), 51–62.

- Yuniarti, D. W., Sulistiyati, T. D., & Suprayitno, E. (2013). Effect of Vacuum Drying Temperature on the Quality of Gabus (Ophiocephalus striatus) Fish Albumin Powder. *THPi Student Journal*, 1(1), 1–9. https:// media.neliti.com/media/publications/110278-ID-none.pdf
- Zilberboim, R., Kopelman, I. J., & Talmon, Y. (1986). Microencapsulation by a dehydrating liquid: Retention of paprika oleoresin and aromatic esters. *Journal of Food Science*, *51*(5), 1301–1306. https://doi. org/10.1111/j.1365-2621.1986.tb13110.x

How to cite this article: Ananingsih, V. K., Soedarini, B., Andriani, C., Konstantia, B. A. A., & Santoso, B. D. (2022). Optimization of encapsulated agents and stirring speed on the physicochemical characteristics of vacuum dried nutmeg seed oleoresin (*Myristica fragrans*). *Journal of Food Processing and Preservation*, 00, e17151. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/</u> jfpp.17151